

A Summary of Your Investment Advisory Relationship With Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Page 1 of 2

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM") is an investment adviser registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission that does business as Schwab Asset Management. This summary provides disclosure for separately managed account strategies available to certain retail investors. For more information about financial professionals and investing, including free and simple tools to research our firm and its representatives, visit Investor.gov/CRS

What investment services and advice can you provide me?

We provide discretionary portfolio management services through the separately managed account programs described below, which are offered to clients with whom CSIM has a direct client relationship ("Direct Clients"), through wrap fee programs offered through broker-dealers ("Wrap Fee Programs"), and through a relationship with clients' wealth manager ("Primary Advisor"):

- ✓ Schwab Managed Portfolios[™], which is only offered through a Wrap Fee Program sponsored by our affiliate, Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. ("Schwab"). Client assets are invested in mutual funds ("MFs") and exchange-traded funds ("ETFs"). The minimum investment to open an account is \$25,000.
- Windhaven[®] Strategies, which is offered to Direct Clients; through Wrap Fee Programs sponsored by Schwab and other non-affiliated broker-dealers; and through non-affiliated Primary Advisors. Client assets are primarily invested in ETFs. The minimum investment to open an account is \$100,000, except for ERISA-Type Accounts, for which it is \$25,000.
- ThomasPartners[®] Strategies, which is offered to Direct Clients; through Wrap Fee Programs sponsored by Schwab and other non-affiliated broker-dealers; and through non-affiliated Primary Advisors. Client assets are invested in equity securities, fixed-income securities, MFs, and ETFs. The minimum investment to open an account is \$500,000 for Direct Clients.
- USAA Managed Portfolios UMP[®], which is only offered through a Wrap Fee Program sponsored by Schwab. Client assets are invested in equity securities, fixed-income securities, MFs, and ETFs. The minimum investment to open an account is \$25,000 for UMP Wrap strategies and \$500,000 for UMP Custom strategies. Certain types of securities and asset allocation strategies within UMP Custom have higher minimums.
- Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, which is offered to Direct Clients; through Wrap Fee Programs sponsored by Schwab and other non-affiliated broker-dealers; and through non-affiliated Primary Advisors. Client assets are invested in fixed income securities with a variety of structures, attributes and characteristics, and some portfolios may also offer exposure to income earning equity securities. The minimum investment to open an account is \$500,000 for Direct Clients.

Clients that invest through Wrap Fee Programs, other non-affiliated broker-dealers, and through non-affiliated Primary Advisors, may be subject to a different minimum set by the Wrap Fee Program sponsor, other non-affiliated broker-dealer or Primary Advisor, as applicable.

We actively monitor your account and perform quarterly and/or annual reviews depending on your account. In addition, account reviews may also be performed by personnel of the Wrap Fee Program sponsor or Primary Advisor.

The MFs and ETFs in which client assets may be invested include MFs and ETFs that are advised by CSIM and/or its affiliates. However, investment options are not limited to proprietary products.

For detailed information about our advisory services and the types of clients we serve, review the "Advisory Business" and "Types of Clients" sections of the CSIM Disclosure Brochure for your program at schwabfunds.com/FormCRS.

Conversation Starters

- Given my financial situation, should I choose an investment advisory service? Why or why not?
- How will you choose investments to recommend to me?
- What is your relevant experience, including your licenses, education, and other qualifications? What do these qualifications mean?

What fees will I pay?

If you open an advisory account directly with CSIM in Windhaven Strategies, ThomasPartners Strategies, or Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, you will pay an annual asset-based fee for our services that is charged on either a monthly or quarterly basis.

- The more assets there are in your account, the more you will pay in fees, and we may therefore have an incentive to encourage you to increase the assets in your account.
- In addition to the fees described above, you may incur additional costs, which include fees charged by your custodian for account maintenance and may include transaction fees, commissions, or brokerage fees. You will also incur the costs associated with any MFs and ETFs, including management fees, fund expenses, and any applicable transaction-related fees and charges.

If you invest through a Wrap Fee Program, you may pay an asset-based wrap fee to the Wrap Fee Program sponsor. The Wrap Fee Program sponsor will provide you information about the wrap fee and how frequently it is assessed.

You will pay fees and costs whether you make or lose money on your investments. Fees and costs will reduce any amount of money you make on your investments over time. Please make sure you understand what fees and costs you are paying.

To get more information about fees you will pay, review the "Fees and Compensation" section of the CSIM Disclosure Brochure for your program at schwabfunds.com/FormCRS.

Conversation Starters

- Help me understand how these fees and costs might affect my investments.
- If I give you \$10,000 to invest, how much will go to fees and costs, and how much will be invested for me?

What are your legal obligations to me when acting as my investment adviser? How else does your firm make money and what conflicts of interest do you have?

When we act as your investment adviser, we have to act in your best interest and not put our interest ahead of yours. At the same time, the way we make money creates some conflicts with your interests. You should understand and ask us about these conflicts because they can affect the recommendations we provide you. Here are some examples to help you understand what this means. We and/or our affiliates earn money from:

- ✓ Management fees and/or shareholder servicing fees paid by proprietary MFs and ETFs held in your account
- Shareholder servicing fees paid by third-party MFs held in your account or by the managers or sponsors of those MFs (revenue sharing)
- Other fees paid by third-party MF and ETF sponsors or their affiliates for opportunities such as sponsoring education and events and receiving reporting
- The "spread" on cash in your accounts i.e., the difference between what we earn and what we pay you in interest if your accounts are custodied with our affiliate.

Accordingly, we may be incentivized to recommend certain products that may earn CSIM or its affiliates more revenue than if we invested your money in other products.

For more information about how we make money and our related conflicts of interest for this program, review the CSIM Disclosure Brochure for your program at schwabfunds.com/FormCRS.

Conversation Starter

• How might your conflicts of interest affect me, and how will you address them?

How do your financial professionals make money?

Portfolio managers receive a fixed base salary, are eligible to earn a discretionary bonus, and have the potential to participate in discretionary equity awards.

The discretionary bonus for portfolio managers may differ. The majority of portfolio managers are eligible to earn a discretionary bonus that is funded based on the financial performance of The Charles Schwab Corporation ("CSC") during the annual performance period.

Some portfolio managers are eligible to earn a discretionary bonus that is funded based on two independent components—50% of the funding is based on the financial performance of CSC during the annual period, and 50% of the funding is based on portfolio manager research and performance results for the particular strategy. Other portfolio managers are eligible to earn both a discretionary bonus that is funded on the financial performance of CSC and on the asset growth of certain strategies they manage. While this compensation is discretionary, it may incentivize our portfolio managers to increase the performance or assets in certain accounts, including through riskier investments. To help mitigate such potential conflicts of interest, we maintain policies and procedures that stress that investment decisions are to be made in accordance with the fiduciary duties owed to our clients and without consideration of a portfolio manager's pecuniary, investment, or other financial interests.

Do you or your financial professionals have legal or disciplinary history?

- Yes, we have legal or disciplinary history.
- ✓ For free and simple tools to research our firm and representatives, please visit Investor.gov/CRS.

Conversation Starters

- As a financial professional, do you have any disciplinary history?
- For what type of conduct?

Where can I find additional information?

For additional information about our investment advisory services, including the CSIM Disclosure Brochure for your separately managed account program, or to request a copy of this relationship summary, please go to schwabfunds.com/FormCRS or call the following number 800-650-9744. Clients invested in the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies may also call the following number 239-263-6877.

Conversation Starters

- Who is my primary contact person?
- Is he or she a representative of an investment adviser or a broker-dealer?
- Who can I talk to if I have concerns about how this person is treating me?



March 31, 2021



Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies Disclosure Brochure

600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 1-239-263-6877 www.wasmerschroeder.com

This brochure provides information about the qualifications and business practices of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. If you have any questions about the contents of this brochure, please contact us at 1-239-263-6877. The information in this brochure has not been approved or verified by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") or by any state securities authority. Registration with the SEC does not imply a certain level of skill or training.

Additional information about Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. is also available on the SEC's website at www.adviserinfo.sec.gov.

©2021 Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. All rights reserved. REG114295-00

Summary of Material Changes (As of March 31, 2021, since prior update on July 1, 2020)

Fees and Compensation

• CSIM has modified the discussion of its fees to provide additional information on how client assets are valued for purposes of fee calculations.

Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategy and Risk of Loss

• CSIM has modified the discussion of its methods of analysis and investment strategies, and certain risks currently disclosed in the brochure where CSIM believes that additional disclosure would be beneficial to investors in the current market environment.

Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations

• CSIM has modified the discussion of its relationship with affiliates to disclose new and modified relationships.

Brokerage Practices

• CSIM has updated information pertaining to its trading process for the different types of accounts it manages, the relationships among separate trading groups and portfolio management groups, and how trade rotation and trade allocation are handled.

Client Referrals and Other Compensation

• CSIM has modified the discussion to reflect its relationship with affiliates.

Custody

• CSIM has modified the discussion to reflect its relationship with affiliates.

Contents

Advisory Business	4
Fees and Compensation – Wasmer Schroeder Strategies	4
Performance-Based Fees and Side-by-Side Management	5
Types of Clients	5
Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategies and Risk of Loss.	5
Disciplinary Information	10
Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations.	10
Code of Ethics, Participation or Interest in Client Transactions and Personal Trading	12
Brokerage Practices	13
Review of Accounts	15
Client Referrals and Other Compensation	15
Custody	16
Investment Discretion	16
Voting Client Securities	16
Financial Information	17

Advisory Business

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("CSIM") that is doing business as Schwab Asset Management, was founded in 1989 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Charles Schwab Corporation ("CSC"), a Delaware corporation that is publicly traded and listed on the New York Stock Exchange. CSIM provides advisory services to separately managed accounts ("SMAs"), registered investment companies, which include mutual funds and exchange-traded funds ("ETFs," and collectively with the mutual funds, "Registered Funds"), collective investment trusts and one no-U.S. pooled investment vehicle. As further described in the "Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategies and Risk of Loss" section, CSIM provides advice about a variety of investments, ranging from equity and fixed income to money market securities and also provides advice as to the selection of investment advisers and pooled investment vehicles for certain clients.

On May 26, 2020, CSIM became the investment adviser, and assumed fiduciary responsibility, for the USAA Managed Portfolios – UMP® (the "UMP Program"), which includes UMP Wrap and UMP Custom strategies, and its assets. This is as a result of the acquisition of the assets of USAA Investment Management Company ("USAA IMCO") by an affiliate of CSIM and the subsequent assignment of USAA IMCO's investment advisory agreements to Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. ("Schwab"), with Schwab becoming the wrap fee sponsor, and CSIM becoming the manager, of the UMP Program. Prior to May 26, 2020, the UMP Program was managed by USAA IMCO, a registered investment adviser.

On July 1, 2020, CSIM became the investment adviser and assumed fiduciary responsibility, for the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies. This is as a result of the acquisition of the assets of Wasmer, Schroeder & Company, LLC ("Wasmer") by CSIM and the subsequent assignment of Wasmer's investment advisory agreements to CSIM. Prior to July 1, 2020, the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies were managed by Wasmer, a registered investment adviser.

This brochure relates to the portfolio management services that CSIM provides for the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies. The Wasmer Schroeder Strategies offer portfolios of fixed income securities with a variety of structures, attributes and characteristics such as, but not limited to, the range of maturities held and the taxability of the income generated by various issues held. Some portfolios may also offer exposure to income earning equity securities. Portfolios within a given strategy may not hold identical securities but they generally share common key attributes and are managed consistent with the strategy-specific investment mandate as more fully described in each client's Addendum to Agreements or Investment Policy Statement.

Clients in the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies include those with whom CSIM has a direct contractual relationship through our investment advisory agreement ("Direct Clients"), those who have enrolled in asset-based wrap fee and similar programs offered through broker-dealers ("Wrap Fee Programs"), and those clients that hire CSIM through a relationship with their wealth manager ("Primary Advisor"). The Wrap Fee Programs in which the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies are made available include the Managed Account Connection[®] program (the "Managed Account Program") sponsored by Schwab. Information relating to CSIM's participation in non-Schwab Wrap Fee and similar programs is included in the "Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations" section of this brochure. CSIM receives compensation from program sponsors for the investment management services it provides.

Clients may impose reasonable restrictions on the management of their account(s) subject to approval by CSIM. See the "Investment Discretion" section of this brochure for details on potential investment restrictions.

As of December 31, 2020, CSIM managed approximately \$581,447,137,331 on a discretionary basis and approximately \$28,500,839,238 on a non-discretionary basis.

Fees and Compensation

Annual fees for separately managed accounts are based upon a percentage of assets under management and generally range from 0.08% to 0.75%. Fees are payable in arrears, monthly or quarterly, as determined by the client's specific arrangement. CSIM may deduct fees directly from the client's custodial account, or bill the client directly or bill the sub-advised client's Primary Advisor. For Wrap Fee Program clients, CSIM is paid a portion of the wrap fee by the Wrap Fee Program sponsor. Fees are negotiable based on certain factors including, but not limited to, the size, complexity and investment objectives of the client's account.

After the end of a quarter and after account fees have been calculated, the market value of a portfolio may be adjusted due to a number of reasons (pricing, trade away fees, pay down and factor adjustment for mortgage-backed securities, etc.). This can result in a change to the account fee for that quarter. Account fees paid in advance will not be adjusted if the increase or decrease in the fee represents less than 5% of the fee adjustment (a \$1,000 fee will not be adjusted if the net increase or decrease is less than \$50).

The annualized fees are charged as a percentage of assets under management.

For clients, other than Wrap Fee Program clients, CSIM primarily uses prices supplied by the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies' largest custodian when valuing client assets for fee calculation purposes. If that custodian does not provide a price, then pricing from the second largest custodian will be used, and so on. If no custodian can provide a price, then CSIM uses prices supplied by a pricing vendor.

Direct Clients are subject to CSIM's, or its predecessor's, minimum account requirements and advisory fees in effect at the time the client entered into the advisory relationship. Therefore, CSIM's minimum account requirements and fee arrangements will differ among clients. Also, a small percentage of Direct Clients in the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies may have a flat fee arrangement.

Pursuant to an agreement between CSIM and Schwab, CSIM is entitled to receive an annual fee from Schwab, payable monthly, based on strategy and a percentage on all Schwab Managed Account Program assets it manages. Schwab also provides CSIM with human resources, legal, compliance, and other administrative and technological support services.

CSIM participates as a portfolio manager in the Managed Account Programs offered by Schwab. More specific information about the Managed Account Programs and the fees paid by clients who participate in the Managed Account Programs appears in Schwab's Disclosure Brochure for those programs, which is provided to program clients directly by Schwab. CSIM does not enter into agreements directly with Managed Account Program clients and so does not receive direct compensation from or negotiate fees with them.

Additional Costs

In addition to the fees described above, clients may incur additional costs, which include fees charged by the client's custodian for account maintenance, and may also include transaction fees, commissions, mark-ups and mark-downs, or brokerage fees ("Brokerage Fee") on the purchase and sale of securities in their accounts. Such costs will be paid directly from clients' accounts to the broker-dealer who completes the purchase or sale. For those clients that have selected Schwab as their custodian, Schwab will waive all of its trading commissions, if any, on those accounts managed by CSIM. Please note that Schwab's waiver does not extend to any other non-Schwab Brokerage Fees.

Clients participating in Wrap Fee Programs may be charged various program fees in addition to the advisory fee charged by our firm. Such fees may include the investment advisory fees of the Primary Advisors, which may be charged as part of a wrap fee arrangement. In a Wrap Fee Program, clients pay a single fee for advisory, brokerage and custodial services. Client's portfolio transactions may be executed without a commission charge in a wrap fee arrangement. In evaluating such a program, the client should also consider that, depending upon the level of the wrap fee charged by the broker-dealer, the amount of portfolio activity in the client's account, and other factors, the wrap fee may or may not exceed the aggregate cost of such services if they were to be provided separately.

Information relating to CSIM's brokerage practices is included in the "Brokerage Practices" section of this brochure.

Performance-Based Fees and Side-by-Side Management

Not applicable.

Types of Clients

Clients of Wasmer Schroeder Strategies primarily include individuals (other than high net worth individuals), high net worth individuals, trusts, banking or thrift institutions, charitable organizations, pension and profit-sharing plans (other than plan participants), investment companies, pooled investment vehicles (other than investment companies), state or municipal government entities, insurance companies, and corporations or other business entities not listed above.Certain accounts subject to ERISA are not eligible for the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies on Schwab's Managed Account Platform. The minimum investment required to open an account in a Wasmer Schroeder Strategy varies by strategy, but is at least \$500,000 per account. Exceptions to the minimum investment requirement are made at CSIM's discretion.

If the market value of a client account falls below this specified minimum due to withdrawal of assets from the account, clients may be required to deposit additional money or securities to bring the account up to the required minimum, and CSIM reserves the right to discontinue management of the account. Exceptions to this policy are made at CSIM's discretion.

Clients who invest in the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies through Schwab's Managed Account Programs, programs sponsored by other brokers ("Broker/Custodian-Related Program"), through a Primary Advisor or other arrangements by which CSIM acts as sub-adviser to clients' accounts may be subject to a different minimum.

Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategies and Risk of Loss

In managing discretionary client accounts and providing recommendations to non-discretionary clients, CSIM uses various investment strategies and methods of analysis, as described below. This section also contains a discussion of the primary risks associated with these investment strategies, although it is not possible to identify all of the risks associated with investing and the particular risks applicable to a client account will depend on the nature of the account, its investment strategy or strategies and the types of securities held. Where available, please refer to the applicable prospectus or other offering documents for a more detailed discussion of strategies and risks involved with your particular account.

While CSIM seeks to manage accounts so that risks are appropriate to the return potential for the strategy, it is often not possible or desirable to fully mitigate risks. Any investment includes the risk of loss and there can be no guarantee that a particular level of return will be achieved. Clients should understand that they could lose some or all of their investment and should be prepared to bear the risk of such potential losses.

Clients should be aware that while CSIM does not limit its advice to particular types of investments, client mandates may be limited to certain types of securities (e.g., equities) or to the recommendation of investment advisers or pooled investment vehicles and may not be diversified. Unless specifically discussed with a client, the accounts managed by CSIM are generally not intended to provide a complete investment program for a client or investor and CSIM expects that the assets it manages typically do not represent all of the client's assets. Clients are responsible for appropriately diversifying their assets to guard against the risk of loss.

CSIM receives a broad range of research from a wide variety of sources that includes Schwab-affiliated entities, other brokers, and independent research providers, including issuers and trading partners. CSIM may use written reports prepared by recognized analysts who are specialists in the industry and may use computer-based models to assist in portfolio management. CSIM may also use statistical and other information published by third-party data providers, industry, and government, information gathered at meetings of professionals within the industry, and its own research of investment trends.

CSIM creates diversified portfolios that primarily consist of ETFs and/or mutual funds in a single account for several SMA strategies and certain pooled investment vehicles it manages. CSIM also creates model portfolios that consist of ETFs and/or mutual funds and provides non-discretionary investment advice regarding ETFs and/or mutual funds to its affiliate. TD Ameritrade Investment Management. Inc. ("TDAIM") for SMAs that TDAIM advises. In addition, CSIM also provides portfolio management for ThomasPartners Strategies, which invests primarily in dividend-paying stocks and fixed income investments, and pooled investment vehicles that invest in a variety of equity and fixed income securities. Each SMA strategy or pooled investment vehicle that CSIM manages maintains a cash component which may be invested in Schwab Cash Vehicles (as defined later in this brochure), a money market fund, an ETF, or similar cash instruments. The guidelines for asset allocations for each SMA strategy, pooled investment vehicle, model portfolios or TDAIM-advised SMAs differ from the others. However, certain pooled investment vehicles may have substantially equivalent strategies. In such circumstances, the guidelines for multiple pooled investment vehicles may be substantially similar. There may be times when CSIM is investing in the same ETF or mutual fund for different SMA strategies, pooled investment vehicles, model portfolios or TDAIM-advised SMAs; however, portfolio management personnel make investment decisions based on the investment objectives and parameters set for each SMA strategy, pooled investment vehicle, or model portfolio. CSIM has adopted policies and procedures to address any conflicts of interest that may arise.

CSIM may invest a portion of a Wasmer Schroeder Strategies client's account in shares of a Registered Fund managed by CSIM. CSIM has a conflict of interest in investing client assets in shares of such Registered Funds if CSIM earns both a management fee on the assets in the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies client's account, as well as a fee for managing any Registered Fund. CSIM will waive its Wasmer Schroeder Strategies account-level fee for assets of any retirement accounts, including IRAs and accounts subject to Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA") invested in shares of a Registered Fund managed by CSIM. CSIM may waive its Wasmer Schroeder Strategies account-level fee for assets of any other account invested in shares of a Registered Fund managed by CSIM.

Methods of Analysis and Investment Strategies

CSIM uses the following methods of analysis in formulating its investment advice and/or managing Wasmer Schroeder Strategies client assets:

Fundamental Analysis. CSIM attempts to measure the intrinsic value of a security by looking at economic and financial factors including the overall economy, industry conditions, and the financial condition and management of the company or issuer to determine if the security is underpriced (indicating it may be a good time to buy)

or overpriced (indicating it may be time to sell). Fundamental analysis does not attempt to anticipate market movements. This presents a potential risk, as the price of a security can move up or down along with the overall market regardless of the economic and financial factors considered in evaluating the issuer.

Cyclical Analysis. Cyclical analysis involves looking at overall macro trends of state, local, national and global economic trends. This includes, but is not limited to, unemployment rates, industrial production, wage growth and other factors. Cyclical trends in the economy are then applied to security selection, yield curve positioning and credit quality decisions.

Quantitative Analysis. CSIM employs a conservative credit approach that emphasizes the investment grade quality, essential purpose sectors in the municipal bond market. CSIM reviews each purchase candidate utilizing various industry specific credit metrics and statistics. These include analyzing relevant economic, demographic, and employment data as well as issuer financial position and debt burden. These credit metrics are evaluated using CSIM's approved credit criteria as a framework. With each corporate issuer CSIM evaluates a range of metrics ranging from broad-based data to ratios that have industry specific relevance. These metrics often reveal areas that need further examination. This spectrum of quantitative analysis provides an identifiable risk assessment.

Qualitative Analysis. CSIM subjectively evaluates non-quantifiable factors such as quality of management, labor relations, and strength of research and development factors not readily subject to measurement and incorporate this analysis into CSIM's investment decision process based on that data. A risk in using qualitative analysis is that CSIM's subjective judgment may prove incorrect.

Risks for all forms of analysis. CSIM's securities analysis methods rely on the assumption that the issuers whose securities CSIM purchases and sells, the rating agencies that review these securities, and other publicly-available sources of information about these securities, are providing accurate and unbiased data. While CSIM is alert to indications that data may be incorrect, there is always a risk that CSIM's analysis may be compromised by inaccurate or misleading information.

CSIM manages client portfolios with a zero default rate objective. CSIM focuses on opportunities within a security's credit profile and its structural aspects. Portfolios are structured primarily for maximum income and capital preservation. Investment decisions are based on the client's parameters and current market conditions. Overall planning and long-term strategy are determined through the CSIM governance committee structure with input from portfolio management. Execution of the investment strategy is conducted by the assigned Portfolio Manager and each trade is reviewed by a designated member of senior portfolio management.

CSIM manages portfolios of fixed income securities with a variety of structures, attributes and characteristics such as, but not limited to, the range of maturities held and the taxability of the income generated by various issues held. Portfolios within a given strategy may not hold identical securities but they generally share common key attributes and are managed consistent with the strategy-specific investment mandate as more fully described in each client's Addendum to Agreements or Investment Policy Statement.

The following is a brief overview of CSIM's Wasmer Schroeder Strategies. For the equity portion of the strategies, the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies portfolio management team may determine to use another portfolio management team that specializes in equity or a particular segment of the equity market to provide trading services and/or portfolio management for equity or that particular segment of the equity market. CSIM also manages portfolios of fixed income securities with a variety of structures, attributes and characteristics under custom investment mandates for certain clients, including Wasmer Schroeder Strategies that are no longer offered broadly. **Short Tax Exempt.** The strategy contains predominantly investment grade U.S. tax exempt municipal fixed income securities which, in the aggregate, exhibit a short-term (\leq 3 years) overall duration. The strategy is managed primarily for capital preservation, liquidity and tax exempt income in excess of cash and cash alternatives.

Intermediate Tax Exempt. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade U.S. tax exempt municipal fixed income securities which, in the aggregate, exhibit an intermediate (3 – 6 year) overall duration. The Strategy is managed primarily to maximize tax exempt income and for capital preservation.

Positive Impact Tax Exempt. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade U.S. municipal fixed income securities which, in the aggregate, exhibit an intermediate (3 – 6 year) overall duration. In addition, the Strategy invests in tax exempt and taxable securities which meet positive impact parameters. The Strategy is managed primarily to maximize tax exempt income and for capital preservation.

Short Tax Exempt Credit. The strategy contains both investment grade and below investment grade U.S. tax exempt municipal fixed income securities which, in the aggregate, exhibit a short term (≤ 3 year) overall duration. The strategy maintains significant exposure to investment grade issuers, but has the ability to maintain exposure to the entire credit curve, including below investment grade and non-rated issuers. The strategy seeks to add value through the Firm's core competencies of credit research, surveillance, and assessment of relative value.

Intermediate Tax Exempt Credit. The Strategy contains both investment grade and below investment grade U.S. tax exempt municipal fixed income securities which, in the aggregate, exhibit an intermediate (3 – 6 year) overall duration. The strategy maintains significant exposure to investment grade issuers, but has the ability to maintain exposure to the entire credit curve, including below investment grade and non-rated issuers. The strategy seeks to maximize tax exempt income by fully utilizing the initial 15 years of the yield curve and the entire municipal credit curve. The strategy seeks to add value through the Firm's core competencies of credit research, surveillance, and assessment of relative value.

Intermediate Strategic Tax Exempt. The strategy contains primarily investment grade U.S. tax exempt municipal fixed income securities which, in the aggregate exhibit an intermediate (3 – 6 year) overall duration. The strategy seeks to add value through the CSIM's core competencies of credit research, surveillance, and assessment of relative value.

Strategic Tax Exempt. The strategy contains primarily investment grade U.S. tax exempt municipal fixed income securities. The strategy does not utilize a predetermined duration restriction and may exhibit sensitivity to changes in long-term tax exempt interest rates. The strategy seeks to add value through the CSIM's core competencies of credit research, surveillance, and assessment of relative value.

Long Tax Exempt. The strategy focuses on maturities predominantly in the 10 to 30-year area of the yield curve. Call protection is significant as this strategy focuses on locking in long-term tax exempt yields. Portfolios consist of predominantly AA and AAA securities to minimize long-term credit risk. A minor portion of the portfolio may be allocated to bonds with maturities of less than 10 years if market conditions warrant.

Long Tax Exempt Credit. The strategy contains both investment grade and below investment grade U.S. tax exempt municipal fixed income securities. The strategy maintains significant exposure to investment grade issuers, but has the ability to

maintain exposure to the entire credit curve, including below investment grade and non-rated issuers. The strategy seeks to maximize tax exempt income by fully utilizing the entire municipal yield and credit curves. The strategy seeks to add value through the CSIM's core competencies of credit research, surveillance, and assessment of relative value.

Tax Exempt Variable Rate Demand Notes. The strategy contains primarily variable rate demand municipal securities with daily or weekly reset periods. The strategy focuses on capital preservation and liquidity and invests in higher credit quality bonds with a majority of holdings rated AA or higher.

Ultra Short Duration Taxable Bond. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade corporate bonds, U.S. government agency debt and taxable municipal bonds which, in the aggregate, exhibit a short-term overall duration and a maximum maturity of 24 months. The strategy is managed primarily for capital preservation, liquidity and taxable income in excess of cash and cash alternatives.

Short Duration Bond. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade corporate bonds, U.S. government agency debt and taxable municipal bonds which, in the aggregate, exhibit a short-term (\leq 3 years) overall duration. The strategy is managed primarily for capital preservation, liquidity and taxable income in excess of cash and cash alternatives.

Intermediate Bond. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade corporate bonds, U.S. government agency debt and taxable municipal bonds which in the aggregate exhibit an intermediate term (3 – 5 years) overall duration. Mortgage- backed, asset-backed are also utilized. The strategy is managed primarily to maximize income and for capital preservation.

Intermediate Investment Grade (IG) Credit. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade corporate bonds and taxable municipal bonds, which in the aggregate exhibit an intermediate term (3 – 5 years) overall duration. The strategy is managed primarily to maximize income and for capital preservation.

Core Bond. The strategy is managed primarily for high current income and capital preservation. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade corporate bonds, taxable municipal bonds and government agency debt. Portfolios also maintain strategic allocations of agency mortgage-backed securities and asset-backed securities, depending on market conditions.

Core Investment Grade (IG) Credit. The strategy is a moderate duration style managed primarily for high current income and capital preservation. The strategy contains predominantly investment-grade corporate bonds and taxable municipal bonds to establish a core portfolio.

Multi-Sector Income. The strategy seeks to deliver a consistent, diversified stream of income across multiple asset classes. The strategy derives its income from investments in higher yielding common stocks, preferred stocks, and corporate and taxable municipals bonds. Below investment grade securities can be held but are not an integral component of the overall strategy. All securities purchased in the strategy, regardless of placement on the capital stack of any issuer, are chosen based on the same rigorous fundamental analysis and research methodologies used when constructing portfolios in other, bond-only strategies. The strategy seeks to maintain a high level of income per unit of overall risk.

Positive Impact Bond. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade U.S. corporate bonds, U.S. government agency debt and taxable municipal bonds which in the aggregate

exhibit an intermediate term (3 – 5 years) overall duration. Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities are also utilized. In addition, the strategy invests in taxable securities which meet positive impact parameters. The strategy is managed primarily to maximize income and capital preservation.

Taxable Fixed Income Managed ETF. The strategy seeks to preserve capital and generate income by investing in a diversified mix of fixed income Exchange-Traded Funds (ETFs). The strategy is designed for investors seeking an active allocation to taxable bonds and other income producing instruments.

Municipal Bond Ladders. The strategy contains a laddered portfolio that targets a particular maturity exposure over a specified yield curve range. A fixed percentage of a laddered portfolio's bonds mature or roll out each year and the proceeds are reinvested on the longer end of the ladder. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade U.S. tax exempt municipal securities. The strategy is managed primarily to maximize tax exempt income and for capital preservation.

California Municipal Bond Ladders. The strategy contains a laddered portfolio that targets a particular maturity exposure over a specified yield curve range. A fixed percentage of a laddered portfolio's bonds mature or roll out each year and the proceeds are reinvested on the longer end of the ladder. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade tax exempt municipal securities issued by the State of California. The strategy is managed primarily to maximize tax exempt income and for capital preservation.

Taxable Bond Ladders. The strategy contains a laddered portfolio that targets a particular maturity exposure over a specified yield curve range. A fixed percentage of a laddered portfolio's bonds mature or roll out each year and the proceeds are reinvested on the longer end of the ladder. The strategy contains predominantly investment grade corporate bonds and taxable municipal securities. The strategy is managed primarily to maximize income and for capital preservation.

Risk of Loss

There are inherent risks to investing in strategies managed by CSIM, including the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies. The following list of risks does not purport to be a complete enumeration or explanation of the risks involved in those strategies. As the strategies develop and change over time, clients and investors may be subject to additional and different risk factors. No assurance can be made that profits will be achieved or that substantial losses will not be incurred.

Management Risks

CSIM applies its investment techniques and risk analyses in making investment decisions or recommendations for its clients, but there can be no guarantee that they will produce the desired results. In addition, there is no guarantee that a strategy based on historical information will produce the desired results in the future, and, if market dynamics change, the effectiveness of the strategy may be limited. Each strategy runs the risk that investment techniques will fail to produce the desired results. There also can be no assurance that all of the key personnel will continue to be associated with the firm for any length of time.

Investment Risks

Investments in securities involve various risks, including those summarized below. Clients and prospective clients should be aware that investing in securities involves risk of loss that clients should be prepared to bear.

ETF General Risks

ETFs in which certain of the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies may invest involve certain inherent risks generally associated with investments in a portfolio of underlying securities, including the risk that the general level of the underlying security prices may decline, thereby adversely affecting the value of each unit of the ETF. Moreover, an ETF may not fully replicate the performance of its benchmark index because of the temporary unavailability of certain securities in the secondary market or discrepancies between the ETF and the benchmark index with respect to the weighting of securities or the number of securities held. Investing in ETFs carries the risk of capital loss. ETFs are not guaranteed or insured by the FDIC or any other government agency. You can lose money investing in ETFs.

ETFs in which the strategies invest have their own fees and expenses as set forth in the ETF prospectuses. These fees and expenses lower investment returns. Although ETFs themselves are generally classified as equities, the underlying holdings of ETFs can include a variety of asset classes, including, but not limited to, equities, bonds, foreign currencies, physical commodities, and derivatives. A full disclosure of the specific risks of ETFs is located in the respective prospectus of each fund.

ETFs may have exposure to derivative instruments, such as futures contracts, forward contracts, options, and swaps. There is a risk that a derivative may not perform as expected. The main risk with derivatives is that some types can amplify a gain or loss, potentially earning or losing substantially more money than the actual cost of the derivative; or that the counterparty may fail to honor its contract terms, causing a loss for the ETF. Use of these instruments may also involve certain costs and risks such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk, market risk, credit risk, management risk, and the risk that an ETF could not close out a position when it would be most advantageous to do so.

Market/Systemic Risks

Financial markets rise and fall in response to a variety of factors, sometimes rapidly and unpredictably. Markets may be impacted by economic, political, regulatory and other conditions, including economic sanctions and other government actions. In addition, the occurrence of global events, such as war, terrorism, environmental disasters, natural disasters, and epidemics, may also negatively affect the financial markets. As with any investment whose performance is tied to these markets, the value of an investment in the fund will fluctuate, which means that an investor could lose money over short or long periods.

Asset Allocation/Strategy/Diversification Risks

Asset allocation decisions may result in more portfolio concentration in a certain asset class or classes, which could reduce overall return if the concentrated assets underperform expectations. The more aggressive the strategy selected, the more likely the portfolio will contain larger weights in riskier asset classes, such as equities. The asset classes in which the strategies seek investment exposure can perform differently from each other at any given time (as well as over the long term), so the strategy will be affected by its allocation among the various asset classes. Depending on market conditions there may be times where diversified strategies perform worse than less diversified strategies.

Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments may be difficult to purchase, sell or value, especially during stressed market conditions. The market for certain investments may become illiquid due to specific adverse changes in the conditions of a particular issuer or under adverse market or economic conditions independent of the issuer. In such cases, a client account with limitations on investments in illiquid securities and the difficulty in readily purchasing and selling such securities at favorable times or prices, may decline in value, experience lower returns and/or be unable to achieve its desired level of exposure to a certain issuer or sector. Further, transactions in illiquid securities may entail transaction costs that are higher than those for transactions in liquid securities. Liquidity risk also includes the risk that market conditions or large redemptions may impact the ability of a client account to meet redemption requests. In order to meet such redemption requests, a client account may be forced to sell securities at inopportune times or prices.

Frequent Trading Risk

CSIM's recommendations may result in frequent trading. To the extent a client account engages in frequent trading, its portfolio turnover rate and transaction costs will rise, which may lower performance and may have tax consequences unless the securities are held in a tax-exempt account.

Counterparty Risks

There may be a risk of an executing broker failing to deliver securities, especially due to the large volume of step-out transactions with broker-dealers other than the program sponsor or client-selected broker-dealer/custodian for the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies. This may result in a loss to the client. CSIM will attempt to mitigate trading counterparty risk through its broker selection program described in "Brokerage Practices."

Custodian Risks

Schwab, or a broker-dealer custodian chosen by the client, is a Securities Investor Protection Corporation ("SIPC") member brokerage firm and maintains SIPC protection. SIPC offers protection of up to \$500,000, including a \$250,000 limit for cash, if a member brokerage firm fails. SIPC covers most securities such, as stocks, bonds, ETFs, and mutual funds, but does not protect against market loss.

Tax Risks

Wasmer Schroeder Strategies are not designed to address specific tax objectives.

Tax treatment of dividends under federal and state law may change over time. Ongoing investment income, capital gains, capital losses, and miscellaneous deductions for some MLPs and certain commodity and currency ETFs, are reported annually on the Schedule K-1, and when MLPs are sold in a taxable account, proceeds will be reported on Form 1099-B. The Schedule K-1 is mailed separately to clients each year and needs to be included in the clients' income tax returns. In cases where the entity generating the Schedule K-1 files for a tax extension beyond April 15, clients may receive their Schedule K-1 after the due date for their income tax return. Individual taxpayers who do not request a filing extension may need to file an amended federal and/or state tax return if they receive their Schedule K-1 after filing their original return. Also, gains and losses associated with some commodities may be taxed differently than standard short-term and long-term capital gains and losses. Clients should consult a professional tax advisor for help with their unique situations.

Tax Gain/Loss Harvesting Risks

Clients may be able to request limited tax gain or loss harvesting opportunities in their accounts. CSIM can accommodate certain tax gain/loss harvest requests. The request is subject to CSIM approval, and CSIM reserves the right to decline the request if, in its discretion, the security or market changes are such that the requested action is not or is no longer appropriate for tax harvesting. There is no guarantee that a client tax gain/loss harvesting request will reduce, defer, or eliminate the tax liability generated by a client's investment portfolio in any given tax year. Clients should consult a professional tax advisor for help with their unique situations.

There are several investment-related risks associated with client-requested tax gain/loss harvesting. There is potential that the gain/loss request may: (i) negatively affect the overall performance of a client's portfolio; (ii) result in a temporary overweight and/or underweight of certain sectors, securities, and/or cash in a client's portfolio; and (iii) result in disallowed tax losses since CSIM will not consider transactions 30 days prior to its harvesting transactions and will only consider transactions 30 days following its harvesting transactions in the identified account, and CSIM will not consider any other account that the client may have. For tax exempt Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, proceeds that are reinvested may result in a taxable event for the account. CSIM may repurchase securities after tax gain harvesting or after the end of the tax loss "wash sale" period at a price higher than that for which they were sold. For Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, CSIM will repurchase similar fixed income securities. Securities sold for the purpose of tax loss may or may not be repurchased by CSIM following the 30-day wash sale period. CSIM cannot prevent wash sales that may occur in other accounts besides the one in which the harvest was requested as a result of the requested gain/loss harvesting activity.

A wash sale is the sale at a loss and purchase of the same or substantially similar security within 30 days of each other. If a wash sale transaction occurs, the Internal Revenue Service may disallow or defer the loss for current tax reporting purposes. More specifically, the wash sale period for any sale at a loss consists of 61 calendar days: the day of the sale, the 30 days before the sale, and the 30 days after the sale. The wash sale rule postpones losses on a sale if replacement shares are bought around the same time.

CSIM will harvest gains and/or losses at the security level only and will not take tax lots into consideration. This means there is potential for a gain to be generated with the sale of the requested security position, despite the security being at a loss overall when combining all tax lots. This may result in partially offsetting the loss being generated and could result in taxes being due on the gains from the sale. This also means that all shares held in this account for the requested security will be sold.

There is the risk that the investment management activity in the client's account subsequent to the tax gain/loss sale may result in additional realized gains or losses that partially or completely offset the losses realized from the tax gain/loss sale requested.

Fixed Income-Related Risks

General Risks

Bond markets rise and fall daily, and fixed income investments, which generally also include instruments with variable or floating rates (including cash and cash-like investments), are subject to various risks. As with any investment whose performance is tied to bond markets, the value of a fixed income investment, ETF, or mutual fund will fluctuate, which means that the client could lose money.

Interest Rate Risks

Interest rates rise and fall over time. During periods when interest rates are low or there are negative interest rates, a client account's yield and total return also may be low or the client account may be unable to maintain positive returns. Changes in interest rates also may affect the client account's value: a rise in interest rates generally causes a client account's value to fall. The risk is greater when an account holds fixed income securities with longer maturities. A client account may also lose money if interest rates rise sharply. The longer the client account's duration, the more sensitive to interest rate movements its value is likely to be. For example a client account with a longer portfolio duration is more likely to experience a decrease in its share price as interest rates rise. Duration is an estimate of a security's (or portfolio of securities) sensitivity to changes in prevailing interest rates that is based on certain factors that may prove to be incorrect. It is therefore not an exact measurement and may not be able to reliably predict a particular security's price sensitivity to changes in interest rates. Certain countries have recently experienced negative interest rates on certain fixed-income securities. A change in a central bank's monetary policy or improving economic conditions may result in a change in interest rates. Rising interest rates may decrease liquidity in the fixed income securities markets, making it more difficult for CSIM to sell a client account's fixed income securities holdings at a time when CSIM might wish to sell such securities. In addition, decreased market liquidity also may make it more difficult to value some or all of the client account's fixed income securities holdings. In general, changing interest rates, including rates that fall below zero, could have

unpredictable effects on markets and may expose fixed-income and related markets to heightened volatility. To the extent that CSIM anticipates interest rate trends imprecisely, a client account could miss yield opportunities or its share price could fall. Inflation-protected securities may react differently to interest rate changes than other types of debt securities and tend to react to changes in "real" interest rates.

Credit Risks

A decline in the credit quality of a portfolio investment could cause a client's account to lose money or underperform. A client could lose money if the issuer or guarantor of a portfolio investment or the counterparty to a derivatives contract fails to make timely principal or interest payments or otherwise honor its obligations. The negative perceptions of an issuer's ability to make such payments could also cause the price of that investment to decline. The credit quality of a portfolio holding can change rapidly in certain market environments and any default on the part of a single portfolio investment could have a negative impact on the value of a client's account.

High Yield Risks

Client accounts that invest in high yield securities and unrated securities of similar credit quality (sometimes called junk bonds) are subject to greater levels of credit and liquidity risks than client accounts that do not invest in such securities. High yield securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments. High yield securities may be more volatile than higher-rated securities. An economic downturn or period of rising interest rates could adversely affect the market for these securities and reduce a client account's ability to sell these securities (liquidity risk). If the issuer of a security is in default with respect to interest or principal payments, a client account may lose its entire investment. Because of the risks involved in investing in high yield securities should be considered speculative.

Government Securities Risks

Many U.S. government securities are not backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government, which means they are neither issued nor guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury. Although maintained in conservatorship by the Federal Housing Finance Agency since September 2008, the Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) maintain only lines of credit with the U.S. Treasury. Other securities, such as obligations issued by the Federal Farm Credit Banks Funding Corporation, are supported solely by the credit of the issuer. There can be no assurance that the U.S. government will provide financial support to securities of its agencies and instrumentalities if it is not obligated to do so under law. Also, any government guarantees on securities a client account owns do not extend to the client account itself. Although the risk of default with U.S. government securities is considered unlikely, any default on the part of a portfolio investment could cause the client account's value to fall. The risk of default may be heightened when there is uncertainty relating to negotiations in the U.S. Congress over increasing the statutory debt ceiling. If the U.S. Congress is unable to negotiate an increase to the statutory debt ceiling, the U.S. government may default on certain U.S. government securities including those held by a client account, which could have an adverse impact on that client account. In recent years, the long-term credit rating of the U.S. government was downgraded by a major rating agency as a result of concern about the U.S. government's budget deficit and rising debt burden. Similar downgrades in the future could increase volatility in domestic and foreign financial markets, result in higher interest rates, lower prices of U.S. Treasury securities and increase the costs of different kinds of debt. Although remote, it is at least theoretically possible that under certain scenarios the U.S. government could default on its debt, including U.S. Treasury securities.

Prepayment and Extension Risks

An investment in fixed income securities is subject to the risk that the securities may be paid off earlier or later than expected. Either situation could cause you to hold securities paying lower-than-market rates of interest, which could hurt an account's yield. In addition, rising interest rates tend to extend the duration of certain fixed income securities, making them more sensitive to changes in interest rates. As a result, in a period of rising interest rates, your account may exhibit additional volatility. This is known as extension risk. When interest rates decline, borrowers may pay off their fixed income securities sooner than expected. This can reduce the returns of an account because the account will have to reinvest that money at the lower prevailing interest rates. This is known as prepayment risk.

Inflation Risks

The value of assets or income from investments may be lower in the future as inflation decreases the value of money. As inflation increases, the value of a portfolio's assets can decline, as can the value of a portfolio's distributions.

Equity-Related Risks

Equity Risk

The prices of equity securities rise and fall daily. These price movements may result from factors affecting individual companies, industries or the securities market as a whole. Individual companies may report poor results or be negatively affected by industry and/or economic trends and developments. The prices of securities issued by such companies may suffer a decline in response. In addition, markets tend to move in cycles, which may cause stock prices to fall over short or extended periods of time.

Market Capitalization Risk

Securities issued by companies of different market capitalizations tend to go in and out of favor based on market and economic conditions. In addition, there may be less trading volume in securities issued by mid- and small-cap companies than those issued by larger companies and, as a result, trading volatility may have a greater impact on the value of securities of mid- and small-cap companies. Securities issued by large-cap companies, on the other hand, may not be able to attain the high growth rates of some mid- and small-cap companies. During a period when securities of a particular market capitalization fall behind other types of investments a client account's performance could be impacted.

Limitations of Disclosure

The foregoing list of risks does not purport to be a complete enumeration or explanation of the risks involved in CSIM's strategies. As the strategies develop and change over time, clients and investors may be subject to additional and different risk factors. No assurance can be made that profits will be achieved or that substantial losses will not be incurred.

Disciplinary Information

Charles Schwab & Co., Inc., Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. and/or Schwab Investments (together, "Schwab" for this section only) reached agreements with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA"), the Illinois Secretary of State, Securities Department ("Illinois"), and the Connecticut Department of Banking, Securities and Business Investments Division ("Connecticut") to settle matters related to the Schwab YieldPlus Fund[®] (the "Yield Plus Fund") and/or Schwab Total Bond Market Fund (the "Bond Fund," and together with Yield Plus Fund, the "Funds" for this section only).

As part of the SEC settlement, the SEC found that Schwab violated certain investment-related laws and regulations related to the offer, sale and management of the Funds from 2005 through 2008. In particular, the SEC found that Schwab: (1) deviated from the Funds'

concentration policy with respect to investments in non-agency mortgage-backed securities, without shareholder approval; (2) made materially misleading statements and omissions about the Yield Plus Fund and its associated risks before and during the decline of its net asset value ("NAV"); (3) materially understated the Yield Plus Fund's weighted average maturity ("WAM") in certain instances; (4) willfully aided and abetted misstatements and omissions appearing in Yield Plus Fund sales materials and other documents; and (5) lacked policies and procedures reasonably designed to prevent the misuse of material nonpublic information about the Yield Plus Fund. Without admitting or denying these allegations, Schwab agreed to pay a total of approximately \$118,944,996 in disgorgement of fees, penalties and interest. The SEC settlement was approved by the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California on February 16, 2011.

The amount paid by Schwab pursuant to the SEC settlement included approximately \$18,000,000 paid by Schwab in settlement of the FINRA matter in which FINRA made related factual allegations against Schwab and found that Schwab's conduct violated FINRA's just and equitable principles of trade and its rules pertaining to communications with the public and supervision.

Schwab also agreed to pay approximately \$8,567,364 in settlement of the Illinois matter, and \$2,800,000 in settlement of the Connecticut matter, in which those states made related factual allegations against Schwab and found that Schwab's conduct violated Illinois and Connecticut laws and regulations relating to the supervision of its employees and the maintenance of written procedures reasonably designed to comply with securities laws and regulations. The amounts paid to Illinois and Connecticut were included in the settlement with the SEC.

Schwab and certain affiliated entities and individuals (the "Schwab Parties") were named as defendants in a number of Yield Plus Fund-related class action lawsuits filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California in 2008. These lawsuits were consolidated into a single class action complaint that alleged violations of state law and federal securities law similar to those described above. The Parties entered into a settlement agreement to settle the plaintiffs' federal securities law claims for approximately \$200,000,000 and the plaintiffs' California law claims for approximately \$35,000,000. On April 19, 2011, the court entered an order granting plaintiffs' and defendants' motions for final approval of the settlement agreements.

Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations

As a wholly owned subsidiary of CSC, CSIM leverages the resources of CSC, Schwab, and their affiliated companies, such as personnel including, but not limited to, its Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") (also CEO of CSIA, an affiliated investment adviser); Chief Compliance Officer ("CCO"); Chief Legal Officer; legal and compliance support; sales, marketing, technology, operations, finance, human resources, and risk management personnel. CSIM pays Schwab for the services of certain employees and for the facilities and equipment necessary to enable it to provide advisory services to clients. CSIM, CSIA and Schwab personnel have reporting relationships to personnel of affiliated entities. These arrangements and others noted below create the potential for conflicts of interest to arise. These potential conflicts of interest are governed by various policies adopted by CSIM. For example, CSIM has adopted policies and procedures reasonably designed to protect against the misuse of information (and mitigate potential conflicts of interest) whether among CSC-affiliated entities or entities or individuals outside of CSC and its affiliates. Other wholly owned subsidiaries of CSC are engaged in investment advisory, brokerage, trust, custody, or banking services.

Charles Schwab & Co., Inc.

CSIM is under common control with Schwab, which is both a registered broker-dealer and a registered investment adviser, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSC. Schwab serves as the principal

underwriter for certain Registered Funds managed by CSIM but does not receive any compensation in that capacity. However, Schwab receives recordkeeping, shareholder servicing and other administrative servicing fees from certain Registered Funds managed by CSIM.

CSIM pays Schwab an annual fee to obtain Schwab Equity Ratings and Schwab Equity Ratings International, which are maintained by Schwab and used by CSIM in its management of the equity strategies for certain Registered Funds. If the Schwab Equity Ratings and/or Schwab Equity Ratings International were no longer available, CSIM would need to significantly alter its methods of analysis for these Registered Funds.

Schwab, which is also an insurance agency, offers certain Registered Funds managed by CSIM as part of its insurance product offerings.

Schwab sponsors, develops, coordinates the calculation of and maintains the Schwab 1000 Index. The Schwab 1000 Index ETF and Schwab 1000 Index Fund that are managed by CSIM seek to track the performance of the Schwab 1000 Index by investing in the constituents of such index or a representative sample of such constituents of the index. Schwab does not provide recommendations to the Registered Funds using the Schwab 1000 Index regarding the purchase or sale of specific securities. In addition, Schwab will not provide any information relating to changes to the Schwab 1000 Index methodology for the inclusion or exclusion of component securities or methodology for the calculation or the return of component securities to the Registered Funds, in advance of a public announcement of such changes by Schwab.

CSIM selects and recommends investment advisers to act as (i) sub-advisers for Registered Funds advised by CSIM, (ii) sub-advisers to CSTB collective investment trusts, (iii) investment advisers of mutual funds or ETFs in which CSIM advised Registered Funds or SMAs invest, or (iv) investment advisers to mutual funds or ETFs that are part of model portfolios or are used in TDAIM advised SMAs. Such investment advisers may have a business relationship with Schwab whereby Schwab has agreed to make mutual funds advised by such investment advisers available through Schwab Mutual Fund OneSource platform. Schwab receives fees from mutual funds and/or their affiliates for the services Schwab provides in connection with Schwab Mutual Fund OneSource. CSIM does not take into consideration whether an adviser participates in these platforms when making its recommendations or selections. Schwab also makes available certain Registered Funds advised by CSIM through its Schwab Mutual Fund OneSource platform.

In its role as sponsor of the SMP Program, CSIM's affiliate, Schwab, sets the target asset allocations for each SMP Program portfolio and creates the parameters that determine mutual fund and ETF eligibility for the SMP Program. Although CSIM does not favor its own Registered Funds, or disfavor any third-party mutual fund or ETF, in its selection of investments or allocation among investments for the SMP Program portfolios, the parameters and eligibility criteria created by Schwab are designed, in part, to favor certain CSIM managed Registered Funds and to disfavor certain third-party mutual funds and ETFs.

Schwab has a financial interest in certain CSIM managed Registered Funds because it or its affiliates receive advisory and recordkeeping, shareholder servicing and other administrative servicing fees from those Registered Funds. This results in higher overall compensation to Schwab, CSIM, and the ultimate parent entity, CSC. Schwab also receives fees from third party funds (or their affiliates) in the SMP Program portfolios for record keeping, shareholder services, and other administrative services. The aggregate fees Schwab or its affiliates receive from the CSIM managed Registered Funds may be greater than the fees Schwab receives from third party funds.

If a client's account(s) is custodied at Schwab, cash in the account(s), whether as an investment holding, or while awaiting pending investment or distribution, may be invested in: (1) a money market fund that is managed by CSIM or distributed by Schwab; (2) a sweep vehicle sponsored by Schwab Bank; or (3) a Schwab One[®] product (collectively, "Schwab Cash Vehicles"). In addition, Direct Client accounts may also have investments in CSIM managed Registered Funds. This presents a conflict of interest. The CSIM Fees will be adjusted relative to the Schwab Cash Vehicle and CSIM managed Registered Funds for retirement accounts, including IRAs and accounts subject to ERISA. CSIM reserves the right to change the manner in which it makes accommodations, to the extent permitted by applicable law. More information about Schwab Cash Vehicles may be found in clients' brokerage account agreement(s) with Schwab.

CSIM serves as an investment manager for the Windhaven Strategies, ThomasPartners Strategies, UMP Program and Wasmer Schroeder Strategies available in the Managed Account Programs sponsored by Schwab. The Schwab Managed Account Programs include, but are not limited to, the following Schwab wrap fee programs: (i) Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. - Managed Account Access[®], and (ii) Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. - Managed Account Connection®. CSIM also serves as an investment manager for the Windhaven Strategies, ThomasPartners Strategies and Wasmer Schroeder Strategies available in programs sponsored by other Broker/Custodian-Related Programs. CSIM receives from the program sponsor a fee for the investment management services it provides for the Windhaven Strategies, ThomasPartners Strategies, UMP Program and Wasmer Schroeder Strategies. Each program sponsor has prepared a brochure which contains detailed information about its wrap fee program, including the wrap fee charged. Copies of each brochure are available from the program sponsor upon request.

Schwab effects securities transactions for clients in the SMP Program, UMP Program, Windhaven Strategies, ThomasPartners Strategies and Wasmer Schroeder Strategies on an agency basis. Windhaven Strategies and ThomasPartners Strategies wrap fee program clients should note that over time only a small portion of transactions, specifically maintenance trades, are executed for their accounts through the program sponsor.

Schwab sponsors the advisory services Schwab Intelligent Portfolios[®] ("SIP") and Schwab Intelligent Portfolios Premium[™] ("SIP Premium"). SIP is an automated discretionary investment advisory service that offers clients a diversified portfolio based on their stated investment objectives and risk tolerance. SIP Premium is a hybrid advisory service that combines financial planning and guidance from Schwab financial planners with discretionary portfolio management through SIP. SIP portfolios may include ETFs managed by CSIM, for which CSIM receives investment advisory fees. SIP is further described below.

In connection with the SMP Program, UMP Program, SIP, ThomasPartners Strategies, Windhaven Strategies and Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, CSIM provides Schwab with composite performance reporting data resources and support, for which CSIM is paid a fee.

Charles Schwab, Hong Kong, Ltd.

Charles Schwab, Hong Kong, Ltd. has been appointed the Hong Kong representative of Charles Schwab Asset Management (Ireland) Limited ("CSAMIL") and is authorized by CSAMIL to receive requests from Hong Kong investors for subscriptions, redemptions and exchange of shares of the non-U.S. fund advised by CSIM. Charles Schwab, Hong Kong, Ltd. is a registered securities dealer that is regulated by the Hong Kong securities and futures commission.

Pooled Investment Vehicles

CSIM provides investment advice to a number of Registered Funds and a non-U.S. fund, and may be deemed to control such funds, although CSIM disclaims any control relationship. CSIM also makes recommendations in connection with the management of certain collective investment trusts although Charles Schwab Trust Bank ("CSTB") retains ultimate investment discretion over those funds.

Charles Schwab Investment Advisory, Inc.

CSIM is under common control with CSIA, a registered investment adviser. CSIM pays CSIA an annual fee to obtain CSIA's asset allocation models which are used in the management of certain Registered Funds.

CSIA provides portfolio management services to SIP. SIP is an automated discretionary investment advisory service that offers clients a diversified portfolio based on their stated investment objectives and risk tolerance. SIP Premium is a hybrid advisory service that combines financial planning and guidance from Schwab financial planners with discretionary portfolio management through SIP. SIP portfolios may include Schwab ETFs managed by CSIM, for which CSIM receives investment advisory fees. CSIM provides CSIA with composite performance reporting data resources and support in connection with SIP for which CSIM is paid a fee. CSIM also provides CSIA with trade execution services for SIP under an inter-company agreement. CSIM directs these trades to Schwab. In addition, CSIM provides proxy voting services to CSIA under an inter-company agreement. CSIM pays CSIA for the services of certain employees primarily providing sales and marketing services.

Charles Schwab Trust Bank

CSIM is under common control with CSTB. CSIM provides non-discretionary investment management advice to CSTB pursuant to an agreement between CSIM and CSTB with respect to collective investment trusts maintained and advised by CSTB. CSIM also provides CSTB with trading support, at CSTB's request. CSTB, however, retains the authority to accept or reject CSIM's recommendations. In addition, CSIM provides administrative and proxy voting services to, and receives compensation from, CSTB. CSTB further provides custodial and other trust services to certain of Schwab's customers and affiliates. CSTB provides directed trust and custody services to employee benefit or similar types of plans, and makes certain Registered Funds advised by CSIM available to these clients.

Charles Schwab Asset Management (Ireland) Limited

CSIM provides discretionary investment advisory services to CSAMIL, an Irish limited liability management company under common control with CSIM, with respect to a non-U.S. pooled investment vehicle ("non-U.S. fund") managed by CSAMIL and receives compensation from CSAMIL with respect to the non-U.S. fund.

Charles Schwab Trust Company

CSIM is under common control with Charles Schwab Trust Company ("CSTC"). Upon request from CSTC, CSIM may offer access to some of its model portfolios, SMP Program strategies and ThomasPartners Strategies to CSTC in connection with the management of trust assets. CSIM also provides trading services and proxy voting guidance to CSTC under an inter-company agreement.

TD Ameritrade Investment Management, LLC

CSIM is under common control with TDAIM. CSIM provides non-discretionary investment management advice to TDAIM pursuant to an agreement between CSIM and TDAIM with respect to certain SMAs advised by TDAIM. TDAIM, however, retains the authority to accept or reject CSIM's recommendations.

TD Ameritrade, Inc.

CSIM is under common control with TD Ameritrade, Inc. ("TDA"), which is both a registered broker-dealer and a registered investment adviser, and a subsidiary of CSC. TDA acts as custodian for certain of CSIM's SMA clients. Also, CSIM participates in a Broker/ Custodian-Related Program sponsored by TD Ameritrade Institutional, a division of TDA, and CSIM receives a fee for the investment management services it provides. TDA receives recordkeeping, shareholder servicing and other administrative servicing fees from certain Registered Funds managed by CSIM that are available through TDA's platform.

CSIM provides model portfolios to TDA. CSIM is not responsible for determining which securities to buy or sell for TDA.

Representatives of TDA receive a payment from TDA for introducing clients to Schwab for services not available through TDA, including the SMP Program, Windhaven Strategies, ThomasPartners Strategies and Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, but excluding the UMP Program. Representatives of TDA receive this payment regardless of whether such clients avail themselves of the Schwab service to which they were introduced.

Code of Ethics, Participation or Interest in Client Transactions and Personal Trading

Code of Ethics

General

CSIM has adopted a code of ethics (the "Code") pursuant to Rule 204A-1 under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended from time to time. The Code sets forth standards of business conduct that reflect CSIM's fiduciary obligations to its clients and requires CSIM employees to comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and promptly report any violation of the Code to a supervisor or CSIM's CCO or their designee. The Code also requires CSIM's officers, directors, employees, contractors and any person who is determined to have access to non-public information regarding any client or CSIM ("access persons") to (i) report, and CSIM to review, personal securities transactions and securities holdings periodically, (ii) pre-clear transactions in covered securities, and (iii) confirm compliance with the provisions of the Code on a periodic basis. Covered securities do not include direct obligations of the U.S. government, high quality short-term debt instruments, investments in non-Schwab affiliated 529 college savings plans, investment in the Schwab Fund for Charitable Giving, and shares of affiliated and non-affiliated money market funds. The Code may be changed as necessary to remain current with regulatory requirements and internal policies and procedures.

A client or prospective client may obtain a copy of CSIM's Code without charge by calling CSIM at (877) 824-5615.

Material Non-Public Information

The Code prohibits access persons from disclosing portfolio transactions or any other material non-public information to anyone outside of CSIM, except as required to effect securities transactions for clients, and from using material non-public information for personal profit or to cause others to profit. Employees are also prohibited from engaging in deceptive conduct in connection with the purchase or sale of securities for client accounts.

Gifts and Business Entertainment

CSIM access persons may not give or accept gifts or business entertainment that violate applicable laws or create a conflict of interest or the appearance of impropriety.

Participation or Interest in Client Transactions

CSIM or Schwab may recommend that a client purchase securities of CSC, the parent company of both CSIM and Schwab. Certain Registered Funds managed by CSIM may purchase securities in an underwriting in which Schwab participates, to the extent consistent with the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder. Schwab, as an insurance agency, may offer to advisory clients of Schwab insurance products that offer Registered Funds managed by CSIM as part of the insurance product offerings.

CSIM has a conflict of interest because it selects ETFs and mutual funds, including Registered Funds, for various client accounts in the UMP Program, SMP Program, ThomasPartners Strategies, Windhaven Strategies and Wasmer Schroeder Strategies and also for certain funds-of-funds. Other affiliates of CSIM may buy or sell the same securities for client accounts. These are all inherent conflicts of interest within and among CSIM, Schwab, and its affiliates. CSIM mitigates these conflicts of interest through its policies and procedures, which include the evaluation of the selection and investment in ETFs and mutual funds, including Registered Funds, consistent with CSIM's fiduciary duty. Subject to Schwab's oversight as the SMP Program sponsor, the investment decision-making processes of CSIM portfolio management teams are separate and independent from Schwab.

When recommending that client accounts invest in Registered Funds managed by CSIM with multiple share classes, CSIM will recommend that such client accounts invest in the lowest cost share class for which the client accounts are eligible. As noted above, the fees CSIM receives from the SMAs will be adjusted relative to the CSIM managed Registered Funds for retirement accounts, including IRAs and accounts subject to ERISA.

Schwab, a related person of CSIM, is a registered broker-dealer that effects securities transactions for its brokerage customers. Schwab may act as a principal or agent in these transactions. In the normal course of the conduct of its business as a broker-dealer, Schwab may enter into purchase and sale transactions in securities that CSIM has recommended to its clients.

CSC, Schwab and CSTB may invest for the benefit of their own accounts in the same securities that CSIM recommends to its clients. These affiliates may buy or sell securities at the same time that CSIM clients are buying or selling the same security and may take positions that are the same or contrary to one that CSIM has recommended. In addition, directors, officers and employees of CSIM may buy or sell for themselves (through personal accounts or through accounts of which they are direct or indirect beneficiaries) securities that are also recommended to, or purchased or sold on behalf of, clients.

Personal Trading

CSIM and its affiliates have established policies and procedures designed to prevent the exchange of information between employees at each organization relating to securities holdings and possible trades. Additionally, the personal securities transactions of CSIM's access persons are subject to the Code, which is designed to detect and mitigate or prevent conflicts of interest and unlawful practices that may arise in connection with an access person's personal securities transactions. For example, as described above, the Code requires periodic reporting and review of personal securities transactions and securities holdings. Furthermore, the Code requires access persons to obtain prior approval from the compliance department prior to engaging in a security transaction except for certain types of transactions deemed not to present conflicts of interest with CSIM's advisory activities on behalf of its clients ("Exempted Transactions"), such as purchases pursuant to an automatic investment plan. Access persons are restricted from executing personal transactions in securities, except for Exempted Transactions, when they know or should have known at the time that there is a pending "buy" or "sell" order in the same security for any client account. Portfolio managers are subject to a blackout period of 7 calendar days for both when a security is traded, or is expected to be traded on behalf of a client account and after a security has been traded on behalf of a client. In addition, certain access persons are prohibited from realizing a profit from purchasing and selling, or selling and purchasing, the same security on a short term basis. All access persons are also restricted from executing a personal transaction in securities when the access person has material non-public information regarding the security or issuer, including affiliated money market funds. Certain personal transactions in securities may be subject to further review by CSIM's CCO or their designee.

Brokerage Practices

CSIM operates separate trading groups (the "Trading Groups"). For equity and multi-asset SMA strategies, Registered Funds and collective investment trusts, the Trading Groups conduct trades at the direction of portfolio managers. For fixed income SMA strategies, Registered Funds and the non-U.S. Fund portfolio managers conduct the trades. Each SMA strategy, Registered Fund, the non-U.S. fund and/or collective investment trust has its designated portfolio management team and/or Trading Group. Generally, each Trading Group trades solely the products and strategies for which it is designated and each portfolio management team provides advice solely to the products and strategies for which it is designated. However, a Trading Group or portfolio management team may provide services to products and strategies for which it is not the designated portfolio management team or Trading Group, at the direction of the product's or strategy's designated portfolio management team. For example, a portfolio management team may determine to use a Trading Group or another portfolio management team that specializes in a particular segment of the financial markets to provide trading services and/or portfolio management for that segment of the financial market within its designated product or strategy.

CSIM has established informational barriers and procedures that seek to prohibit personnel within a Trading Group from communicating or distributing any non-public information related to the trading activities of a product or strategy such personnel support (including information regarding pending orders for clients) to other personnel within the Trading Group that should not be privy to such information. When CSIM personnel are part of two distinct Trading Groups or trade for products and strategies for which they are not the designated Trading Group or portfolio management, CSIM has adopted procedures governing such trading activities to seek to ensure such CSIM personnel are not communicating or distributing any non-public information related to their trading activities of a product or strategy (including information regarding pending orders for clients) to personnel on either a Trading Group or portfolio management team that are not involved in trading for and management of that product or strategy or utilize such non-public information among products or strategies in a manner that is not consistent with policies and procedures.

CSIM generally does not coordinate trading among Trading Groups and, therefore, will at times execute trades for one client from one Trading Group that differ from, or take the opposite side of, trades executed on behalf of another client from another Trading Group. Each Trading Group seeks to obtain best execution on all orders it originates; however, clients serviced by different Trading Groups could receive or appear to receive more favorable outcomes. As noted above, to the extent personnel are aware of trading for accounts serviced by more than one Trading Group, CSIM has adopted procedures requiring such personnel to refrain from coordinating trading for accounts on separate Trading Groups.

Generally, CSIM does not aggregate trades or seek opportunities for cross-transactions between client accounts serviced by different Trading Groups. Accordingly, each Trading Group will generally aggregate and allocate orders only among those clients that it services and independently of the other Trading Group. However, at times a Trading Group that trades for client accounts for which it is not the designated Trading Group may aggregate trades for those client accounts with trades for client accounts for which the Trading Group is the designated Trading Group. A Trading Group will do so only if it is in the best interests of one or more clients to execute their trades on an aggregated basis.

The following discusses CSIM's trading practices with respect to the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies. A discussion of the other Trading Groups' trading practices is included in the disclosure brochures for the products and strategies they support.

Selecting or Recommending Broker-Dealers

CSIM seeks to obtain the best execution for clients' portfolio transactions and will evaluate the quality and cost of services received from broker-dealers/custodians on a periodic and systematic basis. Factors evaluated include execution price, transaction fees, commissions, mark-ups and mark-downs, or brokerage fees ("Brokerage Fees"), promptness and reliability of execution, accuracy of trades, ability to place trades in difficult markets, ability to source liquidity, and confidentiality. In seeking best execution, CSIM considers whether the transaction represents the best qualitative and quantitative execution under the circumstances, which is not solely determined by the lowest brokerage fee available. Brokerage Fees are generally considered to include transaction fees, commissions, or mark-ups and mark-downs on the purchase and sale of securities. CSIM does not consider the receipt of client referrals when selecting or evaluating broker-dealers used for client transactions.

Soft Dollars

CSIM generally will not enter into formal soft-dollar arrangements with brokers or third parties to obtain brokerage or research services in exchange for brokerage commissions paid by advised accounts. However, CSIM does receive various forms of eligible proprietary research that is bundled with brokerage services at no additional cost from certain of the brokers with whom CSIM executes equity or fixed income trades. These include brokers CSIM is affiliated with such as Schwab or from participation Broker/Custodian-Related Programs for certain separately managed account strategies. These services or products can typically include: company financial data and economic data (e.g., unemployment, inflation rates and GDP figures), stock quotes, last sale prices and trading volumes, research reports analyzing the performance of a particular company or stock, access to websites that contain data about various securities markets, narrowly distributed trade magazines or technical journals covering specific industries, products, or issuers, seminars or conferences registration fees which provide substantive content relating to eligible research, discussions with research analysts or meetings with corporate executives which provide a means of obtaining oral advice on securities, markets or particular issuers, short-term custody related to effecting particular transactions and clearance and settlement of those trades, lines between the broker-dealer and order management systems operated by a third party vendor, dedicated lines between the broker-dealer and CSIM's order management system, dedicated lines providing direct dial-up service between CSIM and the trading desk at the broker-dealer, and message services used to transmit orders to broker-dealers for execution. CSIM can use research services furnished by brokers or dealers in servicing all client accounts, and not all services will necessarily be used in connection with the account that paid commissions or spreads to the broker or dealer providing such services.

Although CSIM does not have arrangements to cause a client to pay higher commissions to obtain soft dollar benefits, CSIM benefits from its receipt of bundled research because it does not have to produce or pay for the research, products or services. Consequently, CSIM has an incentive to select or recommend a broker-dealer based on its interest in receiving the proprietary research or other products or services.

CSIM will sometimes purchase for clients new issues of securities in a fixed price offering. In these situations, the seller may be a member of the selling group that will, in addition to selling securities, provide CSIM with research services, in accordance with applicable rules and regulations permitting these types of arrangements. Generally, the seller will provide research "credits" in these situations at a rate that is higher than that which is available for typical secondary market transactions.

CSIM has an internal committee to oversee trading practices, and has established policies and procedures applicable to best execution, soft dollars and other client commissions practices. The policies and procedures require CSIM portfolio management to obtain approval from that committee for certain arrangements with a broker to obtain a research product or brokerage services. CSIM is not obligated to direct client transactions to broker-dealers that provide research information. During its last fiscal year, CSIM did not pay commissions to a particular broker-dealer in return for brokerage and research services but, as noted above, CSIM may have executed through "full service" broker dealers at a rate higher than might otherwise be available.

Directed Brokerage

CSIM does not recommend, request, require or permit any Wasmer Schroeder Strategies client to direct CSIM to execute transactions through a specified broker-dealer.

Trading Process

Trade orders for the different strategies CSIM manages are generated by each strategy's portfolio management team and/or Trading Group, on various systems, and may utilize one or more trading strategies (e.g., price at the time of order arrival, market closing price, volume weighted average price over some specified period). Certain trading strategies place relatively greater emphasis on timing, others on speed of execution, while others place greater emphasis on reducing market impact cost. As a result, the speed of trade order fulfillment and the prices achieved for the same security are likely to vary in different programs or strategies and among Trading Groups. Certain strategies or different Trading Groups, which include accounts in programs with different fee structures, may trade in advance of other strategies or their trades could be completed more quickly, and, in these cases, could achieve different execution on the same or similar securities. In addition, market, regulatory, and/or country limitations (especially in the case of emerging markets) may contribute to differences in security prices.

For Windhaven Strategies, ThomasPartners Strategies, the SMP Program, the UMP Program and SIP, CSIM typically performs maintenance trades and strategy trades. Maintenance trades reflect individual activity in a client account, such as initial contributions, additional account contributions, or raising cash for withdrawals ("Maintenance Trades"). Strategy trades impact nearly all client accounts within a strategy and are directed by that strategy's portfolio management team ("Strategy Trades").

SMP Program, SIP and CSTC clients direct CSIM, CSIA and CSTC, as applicable, to use Schwab to effect securities trades for their account. Large share trade orders can occur when there are large daily flows into or out of the program, CSIM reallocates/ rebalances clients' accounts, or CSIM replaces an ETF with another ETF across all applicable client accounts. For these large trade orders, Schwab may solicit bids from other broker-dealers that may act as principal in the transaction, meaning that the other broker-dealer executes the trade in an account in which the broker-dealer has a beneficial ownership interest or may execute a riskless-principal trade where the other broker-dealer buys (sells) a security from (to) a third party (e.g., another customer or broker-dealer).

Aggregation and Allocation of Securities Transactions

For the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, CSIM will execute block trades where possible and when advantageous to clients. This blocking of trades permits the trading of aggregate blocks of securities composed of assets from multiple client accounts, so long as transaction costs are shared equally and on a pro-rated basis between all accounts included in any such block.

Block trading may allow us to execute trades in a timelier, more equitable manner, at an average price. CSIM will typically aggregate trades among clients whose accounts can be traded at a given broker. Significant aspects of CSIM's block trading policy and procedures are described herein. Transactions for any client account may not be aggregated for execution if the practice is prohibited by or inconsistent with the client's advisory agreement with CSIM, or our firm's order allocation policy. The portfolio manager must determine that the purchase or sale of the particular security involved is appropriate for the client and consistent with the client's investment objectives and with any investment guidelines or restrictions applicable to the client's account. The portfolio manager must reasonably believe that the order aggregation will benefit, and will enable CSIM to achieve best execution for each client participating in the aggregated order. This requires a good faith judgment at the time the order is placed for the execution. It does not mean that the determination made in advance of the transaction must always prove to have been correct in the light of a "20-20 hindsight" perspective. Best execution includes the duty to seek the best quality of execution as well as the best net price. If the order cannot be executed in full at the same price or time, the securities actually purchased or sold by the close of each business day must be allocated. Adjustments to this allocation may be made to participating client accounts in accordance with the initial order ticket or other written statement of allocation. Furthermore, adjustments to this pro rata allocation may be made to avoid having odd amounts of securities held in any client account, or to avoid excessive ticket charges in smaller accounts according to the firm allocation policy. Allocations are determined by strategy and client type with regard to how securities are allocated to an account. Considerations for allocation in municipal accounts include but are not limited to client state of residence, cash as a percentage of assets, lot size and structural needs. For taxable accounts considerations include, but are not limited to, cash as a percentage of assets, lot size, asset class needs, duration and ratings needs. Generally, each client that participates in the aggregated order must do so at the average price for all separate transactions made to fill the order, and must share in the commissions on a pro rata basis in proportion to the client's participation. Under the client's agreement with the custodian/broker, transaction costs may be based on the number of securities traded for each client. No client or account will be unfairly favored over another.

"Step-Out" Trades

For Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, CSIM places fixed income securities trades with selected broker-dealers other than the program sponsor or client-selected broker-dealer/custodian to the extent that a "step-out" trade from the program sponsor or client selected broker-dealer/custodian will seek to achieve best execution in aggregate over time. Certain program sponsors may have restrictions on accommodating step-out trades which may affect execution quality.

Trade Errors

CSIM maintains policies and procedures that address the identification and correction of trade errors. On those occasions when such an error does occur, CSIM will use reasonable efforts to identify and resolve errors as promptly as possible. CSIM will address and resolve errors on a case-by-case basis, in its discretion, based on the facts and circumstances. CSIM is not obligated to follow any single method of resolving errors but will seek to treat all clients fairly in the resolution of trade errors.

Review of Accounts

CSIM periodically reviews client accounts, including Registered Funds, utilizing product-specific review processes. Accordingly, account review may differ across client and product types. CSIM's portfolio managers are generally responsible for the daily management and review of the client accounts under their supervision. Such reviews may examine compliance with client's investment objectives and account guidelines, account performance and CSIM's current investment process and practices, as applicable. Below is a more detailed description of account reviews conducted by CSIM.

Direct Client accounts are typically reviewed on at least an annual basis. The reviews are performed by Portfolio Managers and/or the Client Service team members and generally focus on the client's personal financial situation, liquidity needs, and comfort with risk level; a review of account restrictions; an overview of the client's current portfolio; and any questions the client may have on their accounts and strategies. For clients who establish and maintain their relationship through their Primary Advisor, sub-adviser or Wrap Fee Program sponsor, account reviews would typically be performed by personnel of the Primary Advisor, sub-adviser or Wrap Fee Program sponsor. Reviews of accounts custodied at Schwab may be assisted by Schwab personnel. Clients generally receive guarterly written reports, which include the client's investment positions and the performance of their Wasmer Schroeder Strategies account(s). This is in addition to the monthly statements from custodians and confirmations of transactions that clients receive from various broker-dealers.

Client Referrals and Other Compensation

CSIM may recommend that Wasmer Schroeder Strategies clients establish brokerage accounts with Schwab, an affiliate registered broker-dealer, to maintain custody of clients' assets and to effect trades for their accounts.

Certain employees of CSIM and CSIM's affiliates are compensated based on the asset growth of the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies. Consequently, these employees may have an incentive to recommend the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies over other types of strategies managed by CSIM.

CSIM may contract with unaffiliated independent solicitors to obtain new Wasmer Schroeder Strategies clients. Client fees are generally not higher than CSIM's standard Wasmer Schroeder Strategies fees because of payment to such a solicitor.

Schwab provides CSIM, its affiliate, with access to its institutional trading and operations services, which are typically not available to Schwab clients. Schwab's services include research, brokerage, custody, and access to mutual funds and other investments that are otherwise available only to institutional investors or would require a significantly higher minimum initial investment. Schwab also makes available to CSIM other products and services that benefit CSIM but may not benefit clients' accounts. Some of these other products and services assist CSIM in managing and administering clients' accounts. These include software and other technology that provide access to client account data (such as trade confirmations and account statements); facilitate trade execution (and allocation of aggregated trade orders for multiple client accounts); provide research, pricing information, and other market data; facilitate payment of CSIM's Fees from its clients' accounts in the Windhaven Strategies and ThomasPartners Strategies; and assist with back-office support, recordkeeping, and client reporting. Many of these services generally may be used to service all or a substantial number of Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, Windhaven Strategies, ThomasPartners Strategies, UMP Program and SMP Program client accounts, including accounts not maintained at Schwab.

Schwab may also provide CSIM with other services intended to help CSIM manage and further develop its business. These services may include consulting, publications and presentations on practice management, information technology, business succession, regulatory compliance, and marketing. In addition, Schwab may make available, arrange, and/or pay for these types of services to CSIM by independent third parties. Schwab may discount or waive fees it would otherwise charge for some of these services or pay all or a part of the fees of a third party providing these services to CSIM.

Representatives of TDA receive a payment from TDA for referring clients to Schwab for services not available through TDA, including the SMP Program, Windahven Strategies, ThomasPartners Strategies and Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, but excluding the UMP Program. Representatives of TDA receive this payment regardless of whether referred clients avail themselves of the Schwab service for which they have been referred.

Other Broker/Custodian-Related Programs

For the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, CSIM participates in a number of Broker/Custodian-Related Programs sponsored by unaffiliated firms. If a client does not have an existing custodial relationship, CSIM may recommend that the client establish the brokerage account(s) with a custodian with whom CSIM has an existing relationship. While the custodian chosen does not impact the investment advice provided, CSIM may receive benefits that may not be available if the client chose a different custodian and that may or may not depend on the amount of assets custodied. These benefits may include: access to client account data (such as trade confirmations and account statements); facilitation of trade execution and allocate aggregated trade orders for multiple client accounts; research, pricing and other market data; facilitation of payment of our fees from clients' accounts; and assistance with back-office functions, recordkeeping and client reporting. These services may also include: compliance, legal and business consulting; publications and conferences on practice management and business succession; and access to employee benefits providers, human capital consultants and insurance providers.

These benefits and services may be useful for all client accounts. Although we recommend that clients establish accounts with specific custodians, it is the client's decision to determine the custodian to custody their assets. CSIM is independently owned and operated and not affiliated with any custodian other than Schwab. As a result of receiving benefits and such services for no additional cost, we may have an incentive to continue to use or expand the use of the custodians' services. We examined this potential conflict of interest when we chose to enter into the relationships and periodically review such conflicts and have determined that these arrangements are in the best interests of CSIM's clients and satisfy our client obligations, including our duty to seek best execution.

Client Referrals from Solicitors

CSIM may contract with independent solicitors and its affiliate, Schwab (and/or Schwab affiliates), to obtain new Wasmer Schroeder Strategies clients. CSIM participates in the Fidelity Wealth Advisor Solutions® program (the "WAS Program"), through which CSIM receives Wasmer Schroeder Strategies referrals from Fidelity Personal and Workplace Advisors LLC ("FPWA"), a registered investment adviser and indirect wholly owned subsidiary of FMR LLC, the parent company of Fidelity Investments. CSIM is independent and not affiliated with FPWA or FMR LLC. FPWA does not supervise or control CSIM, and FPWA has no responsibility or oversight of CSIM's provision of Wasmer Schroeder Strategies portfolio management or other advisory services. Currently, CSIM does not receive any new referrals in the program. CSIM continues to pay referral fees to FPWA for referrals previously received based on CSIM's assets under management attributable to each client referred by FPWA or members of each client's household. These referral fees are paid by CSIM and not the client.

Some solicitors may require CSIM to meet certain minimum participation criteria, or may select CSIM as a result of its other business relationships with the solicitor and its affiliates. As a result, CSIM may have a conflict of interest in using or recommending the solicitor or its affiliates to provide services such as brokerage and custody to its advisory clients.

Custody

For those Wasmer Schroeder Strategies clients that have selected Schwab or TDA as custodian for their account, Schwab or TDA, as applicable, on at least a quarterly basis, will send client account statements detailing account positions and activities during the preceding period. A portion of client accounts are held in custody by unaffiliated broker-dealers or banks. These unaffiliated broker-dealers or banks will also send client account statements on at least a quarterly basis.

Clients should carefully review these statements, and should compare these statements to any account information provided by CSIM, as the information provided in CSIM's quarterly reports for clients may vary based on accounting procedures, reporting dates, or valuation methodologies.

Clients may elect to custody their accounts at any custodian of their choosing, subject to the acceptance of CSIM. However, the selection of a custodian may or may not put a client at a disadvantage for getting best execution for their trades.

CSIM may directly deduct advisory fees from Wasmer Schroeder Strategies client accounts based on the specific arrangement with each client. As part of this billing process, the client's custodian is advised of the amount of the fee to be deducted from that client's account. On at least a quarterly basis, the custodian is required to send to the client a statement showing all transactions within the account during the reporting period. Because the custodian does not calculate the amount of the fee to be deducted, it is important for clients to carefully review their custodial statements to verify the accuracy of the calculation, among other things. Clients should contact us directly if they believe that there may be an error in their statement.

Investment Discretion

When clients choose the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies, they sign the custodian's applicable new account paperwork giving CSIM authorization to make trades in their account. This investment management discretion is limited to the purchase and sale of securities and investment of cash, and does not include discretion for distributions of cash or securities (except for limited grants of authority to facilitate withdrawal of money and direct payments to third parties according to clients' instructions). Clients may impose reasonable restrictions on the management of their account, subject to the acceptance of CSIM.

Investments will not exceed the client's funds in the account and a margin balance will not be maintained, unless allowed by CSIM.

Subject to meeting minimum security gain/loss thresholds and CSIM's approval, CSIM can accommodate client requested tax gain/loss harvesting. CSIM reserves the right to decline the request. CSIM will harvest gains and/or losses at the security level only and will not take tax lots into consideration. See the "Tax Gain/Loss Harvesting Risks" section for more details on the risks associated with client tax gain/loss harvesting for the Wasmer Schroeder Strategies.

Voting Client Securities

The following is a summary of CSIM's Proxy Voting Policy (the "Proxy Policy") concerning proxies voted by CSIM on behalf of each investment advisory client who delegates voting authority to CSIM ("Delegating Client"). The Proxy Policy may be changed as necessary to comply with regulatory requirements and internal policies and procedures. An internal proxy committee (the "Proxy Committee") exercises and documents CSIM's responsibility with regard to voting of client proxies.

To assist CSIM and the overall proxy voting process, CSIM has elected to retain an unaffiliated third party proxy voting service as an expert in the proxy voting and corporate governance area (the "Service"). The services provided by the Service include in-depth research, global issuer analysis and voting recommendations, as well as vote execution, reporting and record keeping. CSIM may retain additional experts in the proxy voting and corporate governance area in the future. The Proxy Committee has the ultimate responsibility for developing the Proxy Policy to determine how to vote the shares. CSIM's Investment Stewardship Team has the primary responsibility to oversee that voting is carried out consistent with the Proxy Policy. The Investment Stewardship Team also conducts research into proxy issues and carries out engagement activities with companies. The Proxy Committee receives reports from the Investment Stewardship Team on these activities. However, portfolio managers of separately managed account clients maintain full discretion to vote the shares held by these clients based on their analysis of the economic impact of the ballot items. Therefore, shares for these separate account clients may be voted differently from those voted solely under the guidance of the Investment Stewardship Team.

As a leading asset manager, it is CSIM's responsibility to use its proxy votes to encourage transparency and corporate governance structures that it believes protect or promote shareholder value. CSIM takes a long-term, measured approach to investment stewardship. CSIM's client-first philosophy drives all of its efforts, including its approach to decision making. In the investment stewardship context, that unfolds through CSIM's efforts to appropriately manage risk by encouraging transparency and focusing on those corporate governance structures that will help protect or promote shareholder value. In general, CSIM believes corporate directors, as the elected representatives of all shareholders, are best positioned to oversee the management of their companies. Accordingly, CSIM typically supports a board of directors' and management's recommendations on proxy matters but may not always do so.

CSIM invests on behalf of its clients in companies domiciled all over the world. Since corporate governance standards and best practices differ by country and jurisdiction, the market context is taken into account in the analysis of proposals. Furthermore, there are instances where CSIM may determine that voting is not in the best interests of its Delegating Clients (typically due to costs or to trading restrictions) and will refrain from submitting votes.

The Proxy Committee reviews the Service's written proxy voting guidelines (the "Service's Proxy Guidelines") with input from the Investment Stewardship Team. CSIM generally utilizes the Service's Proxy Guidelines to vote. However, CSIM may create custom voting guidelines where its view does not align with the Service's Proxy Guidelines. Further, the Proxy Committee may delegate voting decisions on particular types of votes to the Investment Stewardship Team, and the Investment Stewardship Team may vote differently than the Service's Proxy Guidelines suggest, to the extent they believe it is in the best interest of a Delegating Client. Contested director elections, mergers and acquisitions, and most shareholder proposals requesting additional environmental and social disclosures are voted on a case-by-case basis by CSIM's Investment Stewardship Team. In addition, securities held in separately managed accounts may be voted on a case-by-case basis by the portfolio manager for the account.

CSIM has adopted proxy voting principles on key proposals, including election of directors, ratification of auditors, contested directors elections, classified boards, majority/cumulative voting, proxy access, independent chair, executive compensation and frequency, equity compensation plans, employee stock purchase plans, re-price/ exchange option plans, shareholder rights plans, right to call special meetings, right to act by written consent, supermajority voting, increase in authorized common shares, preferred shares, mergers and acquisitions, environmental and social proposals, and political contributions.

CSIM maintains the following practices that seek to prevent undue influence on its proxy voting activity. Such influence might arise from any relationship between the company holding the proxy (or any shareholder or board member of the company) and CSIM, CSIM's affiliates, a client or client's affiliate, or a CSIM employee. From time to time, client accounts may hold securities issued by a Registered Fund advised by CSIM or securities issued by CSC, CSIM's parent company. Because CSIM has an inherent conflict of interest with respect to such proxies, CSIM will "echo vote" proxies solicited by a Registered Fund or by CSC, unless otherwise required by law. When required by law or applicable exemptive order, CSIM will also "echo vote" proxies of an unaffiliated mutual fund or ETF. Echo voting means that proxies for CSIM clients will be voted for and against management in the same proportion as proxies are voted by all of the other shareholders of the relevant issuer. Echo voting allows shares held by CSIM to count towards any necessary quorum without otherwise influencing the outcome of a proxy measure.

Where the Proxy Committee has delegated an item to the Investment Stewardship Team or a portfolio manager of a separately managed separate account, CSIM has taken certain steps to mitigate perceived or potential conflicts of interest, including, but not limited to, the following: (i) maintaining a reporting structure that separates employees with voting authority from those with sales or business relationship authority; (ii) reporting of potential conflicts to the Proxy Committee to review the conflict and provide final vote determination; and (iii) defaulting to CSIM's Proxy Policy.

In all other cases, proxy issues that present material conflicts of interest between CSIM and/or any of its affiliates, and its clients, will be delegated to the Service to be voted in accordance with CSIM's Proxy Policy which is set each year based on governance criteria and not influenced by any individual issuer or ballot item.

Voting proxies with respect to shares of foreign securities may involve significantly greater effort and corresponding cost than voting proxies with respect to domestic securities due to the variety of regulatory schemes and corporate practices in foreign countries with respect to proxy voting. In consideration of the foregoing issues, the Service uses its best efforts to vote foreign proxies. As part of its ongoing oversight, the Proxy Committee will monitor the voting of foreign proxies to determine whether all reasonable steps are taken to vote foreign proxies. If the Proxy Committee determines that the cost associated with the attempt to vote outweighs the potential benefits Delegating Clients may derive from voting, the Proxy Committee may decide not to attempt to vote. In addition, certain foreign countries impose restrictions on the sale of securities for a period of time before and/or after a shareholder meeting. To avoid these trading restrictions, the Proxy Committee instructs the Service not to vote such foreign proxies (share-blocking).

Where CSIM has delegated day-to-day investment management responsibilities for a client account to a sub-adviser, CSIM may (but generally does not) delegate proxy voting responsibility to the sub-adviser. However, each sub-adviser to whom proxy voting responsibility has been delegated will be required to review all proxy solicitation material and to make voting decisions associated with the securities it has been allocated in the best interest of such Delegating Client. Prior to delegating the proxy voting responsibility, CSIM will review each sub-adviser's proxy voting policy to determine whether it believes that each sub-adviser's proxy voting policy is generally consistent with the maximization of the value of CSIM's clients' investments by protecting the long term best interests of a company's shareholders.

Additional information about CSIM's proxy voting practices with respect to the Registered Funds is included in their respective prospectuses and statements of additional information. A client may obtain a copy of CSIM's Proxy Policy, or information regarding how his or her securities were voted, by calling CSIM at 239-263-6877.

Delegating Clients may not direct voting in a particular solicitation. Clients wishing to retain the ability to vote proxies must submit a separate form to their custodian.

Financial Information

CSIM does not require nor solicit prepayment of investment advisory fees in excess of \$1,200 more than six months in advance of

services rendered from its clients. CSIM (and historically CSIA, Windhaven Investment Management, Inc. and ThomasPartners, Inc.) is not aware of any financial condition that is reasonably likely to impair its ability to meet its contractual commitments to clients, nor has CSIM been the subject of a bankruptcy petition at any time during the past ten years.



March 31, 2021



Brochure Supplement

The following brochures supplement the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies Disclosure Brochure and contain information about individuals within Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

> Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. 600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 1-239-263-6877

©2021 Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. All rights reserved. REG114320-01

Mark Joseph Baker

Born 1963

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Director - Client Portfolio Strategist

Redmond, WA +1 239-263-6877 mark.baker@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Mark Joseph Baker that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/1986 Western Washington University Bellingham, WA BA, Finance and Economics

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Director – Client Portfolio Strategist

Dates: 08/2019 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Managing Director

Dates: 03/2011 to 05/2019 SNW Asset Management VP, Business Development & Client Service

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The client portfolio strategist team is responsible for oversight of client accounts and for managing client accounts in accordance with the client's investment objective. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. The contact information for Mark Joseph Baker's supervisor is: Thomas Hagstrom, Vice President, +1 617-960-5222.

Matthew Joseph Kuss

Born 1973

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Director - Client Portfolio Strategist

1133 Avenue of the Americas, 37th Floor New York, NY 10036 +1 239-263-6877 matt.kuss@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Matthew Joseph Kuss that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education – Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/2002 Suffolk University Boston, MA MBA, Finance

Date degree conferred: 05/1996 University of Massachusetts Boston, MA BS, Business Administration/Management

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Director – Client Portfolio Strategist

Dates: 08/2015 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Managing Director

Dates: 11/2004 to 08/2015 Samson Capital Advisors Marketing Director/Portfolio Manager/Fixed Income Portfolio Analyst

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The client portfolio strategist team is responsible for oversight of client accounts and for managing client accounts in accordance with the client's investment objective. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. The contact information for Matthew Joseph Kuss's supervisor is: Greg Laurence, Managing Director – Advisor Investment Sales, +1 312-517-4025.

Justin Stewart Land, CFA®

Born 1976

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Vice President

600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 +1 239-263-6877 justin.land@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Justin Stewart Land that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education – Completed

Date degree conferred: 04/1997 Florida State University Tallahassee, FL BA, History

Professional Designations

CFA Institute Chartered Financial Analyst

To obtain the Chartered Financial Analyst[®] certification, candidates must meet requirements in the areas of education, examination and professional conduct. The education requirement can be met with one of the following: a bachelor's (or equivalent) degree; four years of qualified, professional work experience; or a combination of college and work experience that totals at least four years. Candidates must complete a graduate-level self-study program that includes curricula in the areas of ethics and professional standards, investment tools, asset classes, portfolio management and wealth planning, and they must successfully pass three course exams. Chartered Financial Analyst charter holders agree to abide by the CFA Institute Code of Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct and its Candidate Responsibility Statement.

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Vice President

Dates: 06/2019 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder President

Dates: 12/2017 to 06/2019 Wasmer Schroeder Chief Municipal Strategist

Dates: 07/2013 to 12/2017 Wasmer Schroeder Director of Tax Exempt Management

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions. This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

Justin Stewart Land's manager reports to the President and Chief Operating Officer. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. The contact information for Justin Stewart Land's supervisor is: Martin Manning Wasmer, Senior Vice President, +1 239-263-6877.

Ralph Gage Norton III

Born 1959

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Director - Client Portfolio Strategist

St. Michaels, MD +1 239-263-6877 chip.norton@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Ralph Gage Norton III that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/1982 University of Vermont Burlington, VT BS, Business Administration – Finance

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Director – Client Portfolio Strategist

Dates: 01/2009 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Managing Director

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The client portfolio strategist team is responsible for oversight of client accounts and for managing client accounts in accordance with the client's investment objective. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. The contact information for Ralph Gage Norton III's supervisor is: Kristin Gibson, Managing Director – Institutional Sales NAE, +1 720-418-5178.

Shanly Bret Stach

Born 1960

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Director - Client Portfolio Strategist

121 Southwest Salmon Street, 11th Floor Suite 1100 Portland, OR 97204 +1 239-263-6877 shan.stach@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Shanly Bret Stach that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 06/1984 Oregon State University Corvallis, OR BS, Financial

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Director – Client Portfolio Strategist

Dates: 05/2010 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Managing Director

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities – Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The client portfolio strategist team is responsible for oversight of client accounts and for managing client accounts in accordance with the client's investment objective. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. The contact information for Shanly Bret Stach's supervisor is: Thomas Hagstrom, Vice President, +1 617-960-5222.

Martin Manning Wasmer

Born 1957

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Senior Vice President

600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 +1 239-263-6877 marty.wasmer@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Martin Manning Wasmer that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 12/1980 University of Miami Coral Gables, FL BBA, Finance

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Senior Vice President

Dates: 01/1987 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Chief Executive Officer

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities – Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

Martin Manning Wasmer reports to the President and Chief Operating Officer. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/ governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. The contact information for Martin Manning Wasmer's supervisor is: Jonathan De St Paer, President and Chief Operating Officer of CSIM, +1 415-667-7345.

Jeffrey Moon Yun

Born 1966

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Director - Client Portfolio Strategist

600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 +1 239-263-6877 jeff.yun@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Jeffrey Moon Yun that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education – Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/1984 St. Lawrence University Canton, NY BA, Psychology and Economics

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Director – Client Portfolio Strategist

Dates: 09/2009 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Managing Director

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities – Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The client portfolio strategist team is responsible for oversight of client accounts and for managing client accounts in accordance with the client's investment objective. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. The contact information for Jeffrey Moon Yun's supervisor is: Amos Robinson, Vice President – Business Development & Client Engagement, +1 802-863-1800.



March 31, 2021



Brochure Supplement

The following brochures supplement the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies Disclosure Brochure and contain information about individuals within Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

> Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. 600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 1-239-263-6877

©2021 Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. All rights reserved. REG114319-00

Ruta Bruckute, CFA®

Born 1987

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Portfolio Manager

600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 +1 239-263-6877 ruta.bruckute@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Ruta Bruckute that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/2010 Florida Gulf Coast University Fort Myers, FL BS, Finance with a minor in Economics

Professional Designations

CFA Institute Chartered Financial Analyst

To obtain the Chartered Financial Analyst[®] certification, candidates must meet requirements in the areas of education, examination and professional conduct. The education requirement can be met with one of the following: a bachelor's (or equivalent) degree; four years of qualified, professional work experience; or a combination of college and work experience that totals at least four years. Candidates must complete a graduate-level self-study program that includes curricula in the areas of ethics and professional standards, investment tools, asset classes, portfolio management and wealth planning, and they must successfully pass three course exams. Chartered Financial Analyst charter holders agree to abide by the CFA Institute Code of Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct and its Candidate Responsibility Statement.

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Portfolio Manager

Dates: 07/2019 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Portfolio Manager

Dates: 01/2016 to 06/2019 Wasmer Schroeder Associate Portfolio Manager

Dates: 05/2012 to 01/2016 Wasmer Schroeder Portfolio Analyst

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions. This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Ruta Bruckute's supervisor is: Jason Duane Diefenthaler, Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

Brandon James Cromer

Born 1983

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Associate Portfolio Manager

2423 E Lincoln Dr Phoenix, AZ 85016 +1 239-263-6877 brandon.cromer@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Brandon James Cromer that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact your Schwab representative at 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 10/2019 Rennes School of Business Rennes, France Masters in Finance

Date degree conferred: 05/2005 Arizona State University Tempe, AZ BS in Finance

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 11/2020 – Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Associate Portfolio Manager

Dates: 06/2019 – 11/2020 Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. Senior Specialist

Dates: 02/2006 – 08/2018 The Vanguard Group, Inc. Senior Fixed Income Specialist & Trader

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities – Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Brandon James Cromer's supervisor is: Jason Duane Diefenthaler, Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

Jason Duane Diefenthaler

Born 1977

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Senior Portfolio Manager II

600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 +1 239-263-6877 jason.diefenthaler@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Jason Duane Diefenthaler that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 12/1999 Florida State University Tallahassee, FL BS, Finance

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Senior Portfolio Manager II

Dates: 12/2017 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Director of Tax Exempt Portfolio Management

Dates: 01/2016 to 12/2017 Wasmer Schroeder Senior Vice President, Senior Portfolio Manager

Dates: 01/2000 to 01/2016 Wasmer Schroeder Senior Vice President, High Yield Portfolio Manager

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities – Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Jason Duane Diefenthaler's supervisor is: Brett Wander, Senior Vice President, CSIM CIO Fixed Income, +1 415-667-7448.

Brian Michael Dixon, CFA®

Born 1984

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Senior Portfolio Manager I

600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 +1 239-263-6877 brian.dixon@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Brian Michael Dixon that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education – Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/2007 Babson College Wellesley, MA BS, Business Administration

Professional Designations

CFA Institute Chartered Financial Analyst

To obtain the Chartered Financial Analyst[®] certification, candidates must meet requirements in the areas of education, examination and professional conduct. The education requirement can be met with one of the following: a bachelor's (or equivalent) degree; four years of qualified, professional work experience; or a combination of college and work experience that totals at least four years. Candidates must complete a graduate-level self-study program that includes curricula in the areas of ethics and professional standards, investment tools, asset classes, portfolio management and wealth planning, and they must successfully pass three course exams. Chartered Financial Analyst charter holders agree to abide by the CFA Institute Code of Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct and its Candidate Responsibility Statement.

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Senior Portfolio Manager I

Dates: 12/2017 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Vice President, Senior Portfolio Manager

Dates: 12/2014 to 12/2017 Wasmer Schroeder Portfolio Manager

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Brian Michael Dixon's supervisor is: Jason Duane Diefenthaler, Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

Brian Edward Ferry, CFA®

Born 1986

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Senior Portfolio Manager I

1111 Superior Avenue, Suite 1100 Cleveland, OH 44114 +1 239-263-6877 brian.ferry@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Brian Edward Ferry that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education – Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/2009 Miami University (Ohio) Oxford, OH BS, Finance

Professional Designations

CFA Institute Chartered Financial Analyst

To obtain the Chartered Financial Analyst[®] certification, candidates must meet requirements in the areas of education, examination and professional conduct. The education requirement can be met with one of the following: a bachelor's (or equivalent) degree; four years of qualified, professional work experience; or a combination of college and work experience that totals at least four years. Candidates must complete a graduate-level self-study program that includes curricula in the areas of ethics and professional standards, investment tools, asset classes, portfolio management and wealth planning, and they must successfully pass three course exams. Chartered Financial Analyst charter holders agree to abide by the CFA Institute Code of Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct and its Candidate Responsibility Statement.

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Senior Portfolio Manager I

Dates: 07/2019 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Vice President, Senior Portfolio Manager

Dates: 03/2018 to 06/2019 Wasmer Schroeder Vice President, Portfolio Manager

Dates: 08/2016 to 02/2018 Wasmer Schroeder Portfolio Manager

Dates: 07/2014 to 08/2016 Wasmer Schroeder Associate Portfolio Manager

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities – Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Brian Edward Ferry's supervisor is: Thomas Noyes Richmond Jr., Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

Daniel William Griffith

Born 1993

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Associate Portfolio Manager

600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 +1 239-263-6877 dan.griffith@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Daniel William Griffith that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 12/2017 Florida Gulf Coast University Fort Myers, FL BS, Finance and PGA Golf Management

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Associate Portfolio Manager

Dates: 11/2019 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Associate Portfolio Manager

Dates: 10/2018 to 10/2019 Wasmer Schroeder Client Services Manager

Dates: 01/2018 to 10/2018 Wasmer Schroeder Client Services Associate

Dates: 03/2017 to 12/2017 Wasmer Schroeder Intern

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities – Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Daniel William Griffith's supervisor is: Jason Duane Diefenthaler, Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

Brendan Matthew Kerr, CFA®

Born 1978

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Senior Portfolio Manager I

12802 Tampa Oaks Blvd, Suite 202 Temple Terrace, FL 33637 +1 239-263-6877 brendan.kerr@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Brendan Matthew Kerr that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education – Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/2004 University of Maryland College Park, MD BS, International Business Administration

Professional Designations

CFA Institute Chartered Financial Analyst

To obtain the Chartered Financial Analyst[®] certification, candidates must meet requirements in the areas of education, examination and professional conduct. The education requirement can be met with one of the following: a bachelor's (or equivalent) degree; four years of qualified, professional work experience; or a combination of college and work experience that totals at least four years. Candidates must complete a graduate-level self-study program that includes curricula in the areas of ethics and professional standards, investment tools, asset classes, portfolio management and wealth planning, and they must successfully pass three course exams. Chartered Financial Analyst charter holders agree to abide by the CFA Institute Code of Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct and its Candidate Responsibility Statement.

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Senior Portfolio Manager I

Dates: 12/2017 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Vice President, Portfolio Manager

Dates: 07/2016 to 12/2017 Wasmer Schroeder Vice President, Senior Credit Analyst

Dates: 10/2012 to 07/2016 Wasmer Schroeder Senior Credit Analyst

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions. This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Brendan Matthew Kerr's supervisor is: Jason Duane Diefenthaler, Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

John Stephen Majoros III

Born 1961

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Senior Portfolio Manager II

1111 Superior Avenue, Suite 1100 Cleveland, OH 44114 +1 239-263-6877 john.majoros@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about John Stephen Majoros III that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education – Completed

Date degree conferred: 02/1989 Fordham University New York City, NY MBA, Finance

Date degree conferred: 08/1984 Cleveland State University Cleveland, OH BBA, Finance

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Senior Portfolio Manager II

Dates: 04/2017 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Director of Taxable Portfolio Management

Dates: 11/1997 to 03/2017 Wasmer Schroeder Managing Director – Portfolio Manager

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities – Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for John Stephen Majoros III's supervisor is: Brett Wander, Senior Vice President, CSIM CIO Fixed Income, +1 415-667-7448.

Stephen Eugene McCulloch, CFA®

Born 1988

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Associate Portfolio Manager

9800 Schwab Way Lone Tree, CO 80124 +1 239-263-6877 stephen.mcculloch@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Stephen Eugene McCulloch that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact your Schwab representative at 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 08/2020 University of Denver, Daniels College of Business Denver, CO Master of Science in Applied Quantitative Finance

Date degree conferred: 09/2010 Colorado State University Fort Collins, CO Bachelor of Arts in Economics

Professional Designations

CFA Institute

Chartered Financial Analyst

To obtain the Chartered Financial Analyst[®] certification, candidates must meet requirements in the areas of education, examination and professional conduct. The education requirement can be met with one of the following: a bachelor's (or equivalent) degree; four years of qualified, professional work experience; or a combination of college and work experience that totals at least four years. Candidates must complete a graduate-level self-study program that includes curricula in the areas of ethics and professional standards, investment tools, asset classes, portfolio management and wealth planning, and they must successfully pass three course exams. Chartered Financial Analyst charter holders agree to abide by the CFA Institute Code of Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct and its Candidate Responsibility Statement.

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 11/2020 – Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Associate Portfolio Manager

Dates: 04/2015 – 11/2020 Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Investment Manager Research Analyst

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Stephen Eugene McCulloch's supervisor is: Thomas Noyes Richmond Jr., Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

Jamie Lynn Peek

Born 1985

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Portfolio Manager

600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 +1 239-263-6877 jamie.peek@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Jamie Lynn Peek that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/2011 Florida Gulf Coast University Fort Myers, FL BS, Finance with a minor in Economics

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Portfolio Manager

Dates: 07/2019 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Portfolio Manager

Dates: 11/2016 to 06/2019 Wasmer Schroeder Associate Portfolio Manager

Dates: 08/2016 to 11/2016 Wasmer Schroeder Portfolio Analyst

Dates: 06/2015 to 08/2016 Wasmer Schroeder Marketing Analyst

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities – Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Jamie Lynn Peek's supervisor is: Jason Duane Diefenthaler, Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

Thomas Noyes Richmond, Jr.

Born 1961

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Senior Portfolio Manager II

1111 Superior Avenue, Suite 1100 Cleveland, OH 44114 +1 239-263-6877 tom.richmond@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Thomas Noyes Richmond, Jr. that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/1983 Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute Troy, NY MS, Applied Mathematics

Date degree conferred: 05/1982 Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute Troy, NY BS, Computer Science

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Senior Portfolio Manager II

Dates: 03/2017 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Chief Investment Officer

Dates: 11/1997 to 03/2017 Wasmer Schroeder Managing Director – Portfolio Manager

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities – Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Thomas Noyes Richmond, Jr.'s supervisor is: Brett Wander, Senior Vice President, CSIM CIO Fixed Income, +1 415-667-7448.

Emily Mahan Riddell, CFA®

Born 1982

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Senior Portfolio Manager I

600 5th Ave S, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 +1 239-263-6877 emily.riddell@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Emily Mahan Riddell that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education – Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/2005 Miami University (Ohio) Oxford, OH BS, Finance

Professional Designations

CFA Institute Chartered Financial Analyst

To obtain the Chartered Financial Analyst[®] certification, candidates must meet requirements in the areas of education, examination and professional conduct. The education requirement can be met with one of the following: a bachelor's (or equivalent) degree; four years of qualified, professional work experience; or a combination of college and work experience that totals at least four years. Candidates must complete a graduate-level self-study program that includes curricula in the areas of ethics and professional standards, investment tools, asset classes, portfolio management and wealth planning, and they must successfully pass three course exams. Chartered Financial Analyst charter holders agree to abide by the CFA Institute Code of Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct and its Candidate Responsibility Statement.

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Senior Portfolio Manager I

Dates: 10/2010 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Vice President, Senior Portfolio Manager

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Emily Mahan Riddell's supervisor is: Jason Duane Diefenthaler, Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

Christopher Edward Sheehan

Born 1983

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Senior Portfolio Manager I

1111 Superior Avenue, Suite 1100 Cleveland, OH 44114 +1 239-263-6877 christopher.sheehan@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Christopher Edward Sheehan that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education - Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/2010 Cleveland State University Cleveland, OH MBA

Date degree conferred: 05/2006 Washington & Jefferson College Washington, PA BA, Business Administration

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 07/2020 to Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Senior Portfolio Manager I

Dates: 10/2018 to 06/2020 Wasmer Schroeder Vice President, Senior Portfolio Manager

Dates: 03/2018 to 10/2018 Wasmer Schroeder Vice President, Portfolio Manager

Dates: 04/2012 to 02/2018 Wasmer Schroeder Portfolio Manager

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Christopher Edward Sheehan's supervisor is: John Stephen Majoros III, Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

Rayvon Ahmad Solomon

Born 1996

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.

Associate Portfolio Manager

600 5th Avenue South, Suite 210 Naples, FL 34102 +1 239-263-6877 rayvon.solomon@schwab.com

This brochure supplement provides information about Rayvon Ahmed Solomon that supplements the Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Wasmer Schroeder Strategies disclosure brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact your Schwab representative at 1-239-263-6877 if you did not receive Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc.'s brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Educational Background and Business Experience

Education

Post Secondary Education – Completed

Date degree conferred: 05/2018 University of Northern Colorado Greely, CO Bachelor of Arts in Business Economics

Business Experience

The following section displays the business experience of the individual for at least the past 5 years.

Dates: 10/2020 – Present Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. Associate Portfolio Manager

Dates: 03/2020 – 10/2020 Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. Registered Representative

Dates: 01/2020 - 01/2020 H.C. Elite Services Delivery Driver

Dates: 04/2019 – 10/2019 Bank of America, N.A. Financial Adviser Trainee - FADP

Dates: 03/2019 – 10/2019 Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated Financial Adviser Trainee – FADP

Dates: 11/2018 – 04/2019 Big Lots Store Associate

Dates: 10/2018 – 01/2019 Pruco Securities LLC Registered Representative

Dates: 06/2017 – 08/2017 Morgan Stanley Summer Intern

Dates: 06/2016 – 08/2016 Home Depot Freight Team Associate

Dates: 06/2016 – 08/2016 Comcast Intern

Dates: 06/2016 – 08/2016 Tocabe Crew Member

Disciplinary Information

This section includes information about legal or disciplinary events reported about this individual, such as formal investigations and disciplinary actions initiated by regulators, certain criminal charges, and/or convictions.

This individual has no legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Investment Related

This individual has no other investment related business or occupation that is required to be disclosed.

Other Business Activities - Other

The firm allows employees to engage in certain other outside activities. If the individual is currently involved in any outside business activities that represent 10% or more of his or her time and income, the activities are displayed below:

There are no other outside business activities to disclose.

Additional Compensation

This individual does not receive any economic benefit for providing advisory services, other than a regular salary and bonus.

Supervision

The portfolio management team reports to the Chief Investment Officer of Fixed Income of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), who is responsible for oversight of all Schwab money market and fixed income strategies. Complementing the formal departmental and organizational lines of reporting within CSIM, CSIM has established several key advisory oversight/governance committees in an ongoing effort to improve risk management and the supervision of CSIM investment advisory and administration functions. On a day-to-day basis, CSIM compliance and portfolio supervisory personnel review reports generated by third-party service providers to monitor for deviations from certain regulatory and internal limits set by CSIM with respect to any particular account. The contact information for Rayvon Ahmed Solomon's supervisor is: Jason Duane Diefenthaler, Senior Portfolio Manager II, +1 239-263-6877.

PROXY VOTING POLICY AS OF MARCH 2021

I. INTRODUCTION

Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. ("CSIM"), as an investment adviser, is responsible for voting proxies with respect to the securities held in accounts of investment companies and other clients that have delegated the authority to vote proxies to CSIM. CSIM's Proxy Committee exercises and documents CSIM's responsibility with regard to voting of client proxies, including the review and approval of the Proxy Voting Policy (the "Proxy Policy"). The Proxy Committee is composed of CSIM personnel, including representatives from the Fund Administration, Portfolio Management, and Investment Research and Oversight departments, with input from other relevant departments. CSIM's Investment Stewardship Team has the primary responsibility to oversee that voting is carried out consistent with the Proxy Policy. The Investment Stewardship Team also conducts research into proxy issues and carries out engagement activities with companies. The Proxy Committee receives reports from the Investment Stewardship Team on these activities.

The Proxy Committee has the ultimate responsibility for developing this Proxy Policy to determine how to vote the shares in a manner that seeks to maximize the long-term value of the company. However, portfolio managers of certain fundamentally managed separate account clients maintain full discretion to vote the shares held by these clients based on their analysis of the economic impact of the ballot items. Therefore, shares for these separate account clients may be voted differently from those voted solely under the guidance of the Investment Stewardship Team.

II. PHILOSOPHY

As a leading asset manager, it is CSIM's responsibility to use its proxy votes to encourage transparency and corporate governance structures that it believes protect or promote shareholder value.

Just as the investors in CSIM's equity funds generally have a long-term investment horizon, CSIM takes a long-term, measured approach to investment stewardship. CSIM's client-first philosophy drives all of its efforts, including its approach to decision making. In the investment stewardship context, that unfolds through CSIM's efforts to appropriately manage risk by encouraging transparency and focusing on those corporate governance structures that will help protect or promote shareholder value.

In general, CSIM believes corporate directors, as the elected representatives of all shareholders, are best positioned to oversee the management of their companies. Accordingly, CSIM typically supports a board of directors' and management's recommendations on proxy matters. However, CSIM does not follow these recommendations when it believes doing so would not be in the best interests of shareholders.

III. USE OF PROXY ADVISORS

To assist CSIM in its responsibility for voting proxies and the overall proxy voting process, CSIM has retained Glass, Lewis & Co., LLC ("Glass Lewis") as an expert in the proxy voting and corporate governance area. The services provided by Glass Lewis include in-depth research, global issuer analysis, and voting recommendations as well as vote execution, reporting and record keeping. CSIM has also retained Institutional Shareholder Services Inc. to conduct research and provide voting recommendations on certain topics and may retain additional experts in the proxy voting and corporate governance area in the future.

Both proxy advisory firms have processes in place to notify their clients when a company has indicated it will file or has filed a rebuttal to a proxy advisory firm's voting recommendation.

To support CSIM in efficiently executing its votes, Glass Lewis, simultaneously with issuing its voting recommendations, also automatically populates votes based either on Glass Lewis Guidelines or CSIM custom voting guidelines, except for certain ballot items which CSIM elects to vote manually. CSIM's votes are executed just prior to the vote deadline, which allows CSIM the opportunity to incorporate changes in Glass Lewis voting recommendations or the receipt of additional information from the company or other parties. While Glass Lewis and CSIM must acknowledge the receipt of a rebuttal filing from a company and may, consequently change either the recommendation or the vote, neither party is required to make changes based on the receipt of a rebuttal filing.

IV. PROXY VOTING PRINCIPLES

CSIM invests on behalf of its clients in companies domiciled all over the world. Since corporate governance standards and best practices differ by country and jurisdiction, the market context is taken into account in the analysis of proposals. Furthermore, there are instances where CSIM may determine that voting is not in the best interests of its clients (typically due to costs or to trading restrictions) and will refrain from submitting votes.

The Proxy Committee reviews Glass Lewis' proxy voting guidelines ("Glass Lewis' Guidelines") with input from the Investment Stewardship Team and evaluates them in light of the long-term best interests of shareholders. CSIM generally utilizes Glass Lewis' Guidelines to vote. However, CSIM may create custom voting guidelines where its view does not align with Glass Lewis' Guidelines. Further, the Proxy Committee may delegate voting decisions on particular types of votes to CSIM's Investment Stewardship Team, and CSIM's Investment Stewardship Team may vote differently than Glass Lewis' Guidelines suggest, to the extent they believe it is in the best interest of a client. Contested director elections, mergers and acquisitions, and most shareholder proposals requesting additional environmental and social disclosures are voted on a case-by-case basis by CSIM's Investment Stewardship Team. Securities held in fundamentally managed separate accounts will generally be voted on a case-by-case basis by the appropriate portfolio manager for the account.

The following is a summary of CSIM's proxy voting principles which are grouped according to types of proposals usually presented to shareholders in proxy statements.

A. DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

i. Directors

As a starting point, CSIM expects the board to be composed of a majority of independent directors and to be responsive to shareholders. CSIM also expects directors that serve on a company's nominating, compensation or audit committee to be independent. CSIM believes that diversity of background, experience and skills, and personal characteristics, including gender, race, ethnicity and age, meaningfully contribute to a board's ability to make effective decisions on behalf of shareholders.

Factors that may result in a vote against one or more directors:

- The board is not majority independent
- The board does not have any female directors and has not provided a reasonable explanation for its lack of gender diversity
- Non-independent directors serve on the nominating, compensation or audit committees
- Director recently failed to attend at least 75% of meetings or serves on an excessive number of publicly traded company boards
- Directors approved executive compensation schemes that appear misaligned with shareholders' interests
- Director recently acted in a manner inconsistent with these Proxy Policies or failed to be responsive to concerns of shareholders
- ii. Auditors

CSIM typically supports the ratification of auditors unless CSIM believes that the auditors' independence may have been compromised.

Factors that may result in a vote against the ratification of auditors:

- Audit-related fees are less than half of the total fees paid by the company to the audit firm
- A recent material restatement of annual financial statements
- A pattern of inaccurate audits or other behavior that may call into question an auditor's effectiveness

iii. Contested Director Elections

Directors are sometimes forced to compete against outside nominees proposed by a dissident shareholder (or group of shareholders). CSIM evaluates these situations on a case-by-case basis and votes for the outcome it believes will maximize long-term shareholder value. CSIM considers numerous factors when making its voting decision, including but not limited to the qualifications of director nominees, long-term company performance compared to peers, and the dissident's and management's strategic plans for driving improvements.

B. BOARD MATTERS

i. <u>Classified Boards</u>

CSIM generally defers to management's recommendation for classified board proposals unless CSIM has particular concerns regarding the board's accountability or responsiveness to shareholders.

Factors that may result in a vote supporting a shareholder proposal to de-classify a board:

- The company did not implement a shareholder proposal that was passed by shareholders at two previous shareholder meetings
- The company nominated directors for election that did not receive a majority of shareholder support at the previous shareholder meeting
- The company had material financial statement restatements
- The company's board adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan (a defensive tactic used by a company's board to fight a hostile takeover, commonly referred to as a Poison Pill) during the past year and did not submit it to shareholders for approval

ii. Majority Voting

CSIM generally supports majority voting proposals when they call for plurality voting standards in contested elections.

iii. Cumulative Voting

CSIM typically supports the concept of voting rights being proportional to shareholders' economic stake in the company. Therefore, CSIM will generally not support cumulative voting proposals unless the company has a controlling shareholder or shareholder group and has plurality voting standards.

iv. Proxy Access

CSIM typically does not support proxy access proposals unless CSIM has particular concerns regarding the board's accountability or responsiveness to shareholders. Factors that may result in a vote supporting proxy access:

- The company did not implement a shareholder proposal that was passed by shareholders at two previous shareholder meetings
- The company nominated directors for election that did not receive a majority of shareholder support at the previous shareholder meeting
- The company had material financial statement restatements
- The company's board adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan during the past year and did not submit it to shareholders for approval
- v. Independent Chair

CSIM believes that the board is typically best positioned to determine its leadership structure. Therefore, CSIM will typically not support proposals requiring an independent chair unless CSIM has concerns regarding the board's accountability or responsiveness to shareholders.

Factors that may result in a vote supporting a shareholder proposal requiring an independent chair:

- The company did not implement a shareholder proposal that was passed by shareholders at two previous shareholder meetings
- The company nominated directors for election that did not receive a majority of shareholder support at the previous shareholder meeting
- The company had material financial statement restatements
- The company's board adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan during the past year and did not submit it to shareholders for approval

C. COMPENSATION

i. Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation and Frequency

CSIM generally supports advisory votes on executive compensation (which are proposed by management and are known as "Say-On-Pay") when the compensation scheme appears aligned with shareholder economic interests and lacks problematic features.

Factors that may result in a vote against a company's Say-On-Pay proposal:

- Executive compensation is out of line with industry peers considering the company's performance over time
- Executive compensation plan includes significant guaranteed bonuses or has a low amount of compensation at risk
- Executive compensation plan offers excessive one-time payments, perquisites, taxgross up provisions, or golden parachutes

CSIM typically supports annual advisory votes on executive compensation.

ii. Equity Compensation Plans

CSIM generally supports stock-based compensation plans when they do not overly dilute shareholders by providing participants with excessive awards and lack problematic features.

Factors that may result in a vote against Equity Compensation Plans:

- Plan's total potential dilution appears excessive
- Plan's burn rate appears excessive compared to industry peers
- Plan allows for the re-pricing of options without shareholder approval
- Plan has an evergreen feature

iii. Employee Stock Purchase Plans

CSIM supports the concept of broad employee participation in a company's equity. Therefore, CSIM typically supports employee stock purchase plans when the shares can be purchased at 85% or more of the shares' market value.

iv. Re-price/Exchange Option Plans

CSIM generally only supports management's proposals to re-price options when the plan excludes senior management and directors, does not excessively dilute shareholders, and the company has not significantly underperformed its industry peers over time.

D. ANTI-TAKEOVER

i. Shareholder Rights Plans

Shareholder Rights Plans constrain a potential acquirer's ability to buy shares in a company above a certain threshold without the approval of the company's board of directors. While such a plan may help a company in achieving a higher bid, it may also entrench the incumbent management and board. CSIM believes that shareholders should have the right to approve a Shareholder Rights Plan within a year of its adoption. CSIM generally votes against such plans if they do not have safeguards to protect shareholder interests.

Factors that may result in a vote against a Shareholder Rights Plan proposal:

- Plan does not expire in a relatively short time horizon
- Plan does not have a well-crafted permitted bid or qualified offer feature that mandates shareholder votes in certain situations
- Plan automatically renews without shareholder approval
- Company's corporate governance profile

ii. Right to Call Special Meeting

CSIM generally votes against shareholder proposals asking for shareholders to be given the right to call a special meeting unless the threshold to call a special meeting is 25% or more of shares outstanding to avoid wasting corporate resources.

iii. Right to Act by Written Consent

CSIM generally votes against shareholder proposals asking for shareholders to be given the right to act by written consent if the company already offers shareholders the right to call special meetings. CSIM expects appropriate mechanisms for implementation.

iv. Supermajority Voting

CSIM generally supports the concept of simple majority standards to pass proposals.

E. CAPITAL STRUCTURE, MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS

i. Increase in Authorized Common Shares

CSIM typically supports proposals to increase the authorized shares unless the company does not sufficiently justify the need for the use of the proposed shares.

ii. Preferred Shares

CSIM generally supports proposals to create a class of preferred shares with specific voting, dividend, conversion and other rights.

iii. Mergers and Acquisitions

CSIM generally supports transactions that appear to maximize shareholder value. CSIM assesses these proposals on a case-by-case basis and considers the proposed transaction's strategic rationale, the offer premium, the board's oversight of the sales process, and other pertinent factors.

F. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL PROPOSALS

Environmental and social shareholder proposals typically request companies to either change their business practices or enhance their disclosures. CSIM believes that, in most instances, the board is best positioned to determine a company's strategy and manage its operations, and generally does not support shareholder proposals seeking a change in business practices. CSIM generally evaluates shareholder proposals seeking additional disclosures on relevant environmental, social and human capital management issues on a case-by-case basis and considers a company's current level of reporting, peer disclosures and the existence of controversies or litigation related to the issue.

i. Political Contribution Proposals

CSIM expects the board of directors to have an oversight process for political contributions and lobbying proposals. CSIM generally votes against political contribution shareholder proposals unless there is no evidence of board oversight.

V. ADMINISTRATION

A. CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS

CSIM maintains the following practices that seek to prevent undue influence on its proxy voting activity. Such influence might arise from any relationship between the company holding the proxy (or any shareholder or board member of the company) and CSIM, CSIM's affiliates, a mutual fund or exchange-traded fund managed by CSIM ("Affiliated Fund"), an affiliate of such Fund, or a CSIM employee.

With respect to proxies of an underlying Affiliated Fund, the Proxy Committee will vote such proxies in the same proportion as the vote of all other shareholders of such fund (i.e., "echo vote"), unless otherwise required by law. When required by law or applicable exemptive order, the Proxy Committee will also "echo vote" proxies of an unaffiliated mutual fund or exchange traded fund. For example, certain exemptive orders issued to a fund by the Securities and Exchange Commission and Section 12(d)(1)(F) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, require the fund, under certain circumstances, to "echo vote" proxies of registered investment companies that serve as underlying investments of the fund.

In addition, with respect to holdings of The Charles Schwab Corporation ("CSC") (ticker symbol: SCHW), the Proxy Committee will vote such proxies in the same proportion as the vote of all other shareholders of CSC (*i.e.*, "echo vote"), unless otherwise required by law.

Where the Proxy Committee has delegated an item to the Investment Stewardship Team or a portfolio manager of a fundamentally managed separate account, CSIM has taken certain steps to mitigate perceived or potential conflicts of interest, including, but not limited to, the following:

- maintaining a reporting structure that separates employees with voting authority from those with sales or business relationship authority;
- reporting of potential conflicts to the Proxy Committee to review the conflict and provide final vote determination;
- defaulting to the standard CSIM Proxy Voting Guidelines.

In all other cases, proxy issues that present material conflicts of interest between CSIM, and/or any of its affiliates, and CSIM's clients, will be delegated to Glass Lewis to be voted in accordance with CSIM's Proxy Voting Guidelines which are set each year based on governance criteria and not influenced by any individual issuer or ballot item.

Where CSIM's Investment Stewardship Team conducts an engagement meeting with a company, CSIM has taken certain steps to mitigate perceived or potential conflicts of interest, including, but not limited to, the following:

 ensuring that no members of the Board of (i) CSC or (ii) an Affiliated Fund, that are affiliated with such company, are participants in such meetings.

B. FOREIGN SECURITIES/SHAREBLOCKING

CSIM has arrangements with Glass Lewis for the execution of proxy votes. However, voting proxies with respect to shares of foreign securities may involve significantly greater effort and corresponding cost than voting proxies with respect to domestic securities due to the variety of regulatory schemes and corporate practices in foreign countries with respect to proxy voting. Problems voting foreign proxies may include the following:

- proxy statements and ballots written in a foreign language;
- untimely and/or inadequate notice of shareholder meetings;
- restrictions of foreigner's ability to exercise votes;
- requirements to vote proxies in person;
- requirements to provide local agents with power of attorney to facilitate CSIM's voting instructions.

In consideration of the foregoing issues, Glass Lewis uses its best efforts to vote foreign proxies. As part of its ongoing oversight, the Proxy Committee will monitor the voting of foreign proxies to determine whether all reasonable steps are taken to vote foreign proxies. If the Proxy Committee determines that the cost associated with the attempt to vote outweighs the potential benefits clients may derive from voting, the Proxy Committee may decide not to attempt to vote. In addition, certain foreign countries impose restrictions on the sale of securities for a period of time before and/or after the shareholder meeting. To avoid these trading restrictions, the Proxy Committee instructs Glass Lewis not to vote such foreign proxies (share-blocking).

C. SECURITIES LENDING

Certain of the funds managed by CSIM enter into securities lending arrangements with lending agents to generate additional revenue for their portfolios. In securities lending arrangements, any voting rights that accompany the loaned securities generally pass to the borrower of the securities, but the lender retains the right to recall a security and may then exercise the security's voting rights. In order to vote the proxies of securities out on loan, the securities must be recalled prior to the established record date. CSIM will use its best efforts to recall a fund's securities on loan where deemed appropriate and in the best interest of shareholders.

D. SUB-ADVISORY RELATIONSHIPS

Where CSIM has delegated day-to-day investment management responsibilities to an investment sub-adviser, CSIM may (but generally does not) delegate proxy voting responsibility to such investment sub-adviser. Each sub-adviser to whom proxy voting responsibility has been delegated will be required to review all proxy solicitation material and to make voting decisions in the best interest of each investment company and its shareholders, or other client associated with the securities it has been allocated. Each sub-advisor to whom proxy voting has been delegated must inform CSIM of its voting decisions to allow CSIM to implement the votes. Prior to delegating the proxy voting responsibility, CSIM will review each sub-adviser's proxy voting policy to determine whether it believes

that each sub-adviser's proxy voting policy is generally consistent with the maximization of the value of CSIM's clients' investments by protecting the long-term best interest of shareholders.

E. REPORTING AND RECORD RETENTION

CSIM will maintain, or cause Glass Lewis to maintain, records that identify the manner in which proxies have been voted (or not voted) on behalf of CSIM clients. CSIM will comply with all applicable rules and regulations regarding disclosure of its or its clients' proxy voting records and procedures.

CSIM will retain all proxy voting materials and supporting documentation as required under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended.

This Notice is being provided by Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. as required by California law. You will also be receiving separately The Charles Schwab Corporation's full Privacy Notice.

Important Privacy Choice for Consumers You have the right to control whether we share some of your personal information. Please read the following information carefully before you make your choice below.

Your Rights

You have the following right to restrict the sharing of personal and financial information with Schwab Affiliates (the family of financial services companies that The Charles Schwab Corporation owns or controls) and outside companies that we do business with. Nothing in this form prohibits the sharing of information necessary for us to follow the law, as permitted by law, or to give you the best service on your accounts with us. This includes sending you information about some other products or services.

Your Choice

None

Restrict Information Sharing With Schwab Affiliates And Other Companies We Do Business With To Provide Financial Products And Services: Unless you say "No," we may share personal and financial information about you with Schwab Affiliates and outside companies we contract with to provide financial products and services to you.

□ NO, please do not share personal and financial information with Schwab Affiliates and outside companies you contract with to provide financial products and services.

Time-Sensitive Reply

You may make your privacy choice at any time. Your choice marked here will remain unless you state otherwise. However, if we do not hear from you, we may share some of your information with affiliated companies and other companies with which we have contracts to provide products and services. Your choice will apply to everyone on your account.

Name:		
Account Number:	Last 4 Digits of Social Security Number:	Zip Code:
Signature:		Date:
Name:		
Account Number:	Last 4 Digits of Social Security Number:	Zip Code:
Signature:		Date:

To exercise your choice, do <u>one</u> of the following:

- (1) Call this toll-free number: 1-877-812-1817; OR
- (2) Fill out, sign and fax this form to us at the following toll-free number: 1-877-242-2681; OR
- (3) Fill out, sign and send back this form to Charles Schwab & Co., Inc., P.O. Box 982600, El Paso, TX 79998-2600 (you may want to make a copy for your records).





FACTS WHAT DOES THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION DO WITH YOUR PERSONAL INFORMATION?

Why?	Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please read this notice carefully to understand what we do.
What?	 The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or service you have with us. This information can include: Social Security number and income account balances and transaction history investment experience and assets
How?	All financial companies need to share customers' personal information to run their everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons financial companies can share their customers' personal information; the reasons The Charles Schwab Corporation chooses to share; and whether you can limit this sharing.

Reasons we can share your personal information	Does The Charles Schwab Corporation share?	Can you limit this sharing?
For our everyday business purposes— such as to process your transactions, maintain your account(s), respond to court orders and legal investigations, or	YES	NO
report to credit bureaus	TLS	NO
For our marketing purposes— to offer our products and services to you	YES	NO
For joint marketing with other financial companies	NO	We don't share
For our affiliates' everyday business purposes— information about your transactions and experiences	YES	NO
For our affiliates' everyday business purposes— information about your creditworthiness	YES	YES
For our affiliates to market to you	YES	YES
For nonaffiliates to market to you	NO	We don't share

To limit our sharing	Call 1-877-812-1817 within the U.S. or +1-415-667-8400 from outside the U.S.—our menu will prompt you through your choices. Please note: If you are a <i>new</i> customer, we can begin sharing your information 30 days from the date we sent this notice. When you are <i>no longer</i> our customer, we continue to share your information as described in this notice. However, you can contact us at any time to limit our sharing.
Questions?	Call 1-877-812-1817 or 1-800-435-4000 or go to www.schwab.com/privacy.

Page 2

Who we are	
Who is providing this notice?	The Charles Schwab Corporation (also "Schwab") and its affiliates. See list of affiliates below.

What we do	
How does Schwab protect my personal information?	To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use security measures that comply with federal law. These measures include computer safeguards and secured files and buildings. To learn more about security at Schwab, please visit www.schwab.com/schwabsafe.
How does Schwab collect my personal information?	 We collect your personal information, for example, when you: open an account or give us your income information seek advice about your investments or tell us about your investment or retirement portfolio make deposits or withdrawals from your account We also collect your personal information from others, such as credit bureaus, affiliates, or other companies.
Why can't I limit all sharing?	 Federal law gives you the right to limit only: sharing for affiliates' everyday business purposes—information about your creditworthiness affiliates from using your information to market to you sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing. See below for more on your rights under state law.
What happens when I limit sharing for an account I hold jointly with someone else?	Your choices will apply to everyone on your account.

Definitions	
Affiliates	 Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and nonfinancial companies. Our affiliates include companies with a Charles Schwab name; financial companies such as Charles Schwab & Co., Inc., Charles Schwab Bank, SSB, Charles Schwab Premier Bank, SSB, Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc., Schwab Private Client Investment Advisory, Inc., Charles Schwab Trust Bank; TD Ameritrade Holding Corporation; and nonfinancial companies such as Schwab Performance Technologies and Schwab Compliance Technologies, Inc.
Nonaffiliates	Companies not related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and nonfinancial companies. • The Charles Schwab Corporation does not share with nonaffiliates so they can market to you.
Joint marketing	A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together market financial products or services to you. • The Charles Schwab Corporation doesn't jointly market.

Other important information

Charles Schwab Bank, SSB, and Charles Schwab Premier Bank, SSB, are chartered under the laws of the State of Texas and by state law are subject to regulatory oversight by the Texas Department of Savings and Mortgage Lending. Any consumer wishing to file a complaint against Charles Schwab Bank, SSB, or Charles Schwab Premier Bank, SSB, should contact the Texas Department of Savings and Mortgage Lending through one of the means indicated below:

In person or by U.S. mail: 2601 North Lamar Boulevard, Suite 201, Austin, Texas 78705-4294; by telephone: 1-877-276-5550; by fax: 1-512-936-2003; or by electronic submission via the Department's website: www.sml.texas.gov/consumerinformation/tdsml_consumer_complaints.html.

California residents: Please go to schwab.com/ccpa to learn more about our Privacy Notice for California Residents.

Nevada residents: Nevada law requires us to disclose that you may request to be placed on Schwab's internal "do not call" list at any time by calling 1-800-435-4000, and that we are providing this notice to you pursuant to state law, and that you may obtain further information by contacting the Nevada Attorney General, 555 E. Washington Ave., Suite 3900, Las Vegas, NV 89101; phone 1-702-486-3132; email BCPINFO@ag.state.nv.us.

Vermont residents: We will automatically limit sharing of your information.

To learn more about our Online Privacy and Tracking practices, please go to schwab.com/online-privacy.

This Notice does not apply to Charles Schwab, Hong Kong, Limited; Charles Schwab Singapore Pte. Ltd.; Charles Schwab, U.K., Ltd.; or individuals in the European Economic Area (EEA). Please go to international.schwab.com/privacy to learn about the privacy policies applicable to these businesses and individuals in the EEA.